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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

THE MEMBERS OF

M/s NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the audit of the Ind-AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind-AS financial statements of M/s NAPINO DIGITAL
SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. (Herein after referred to as “Ind-AS financial statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind-AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) rules,2015, as amended,(“Ind AS™) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit and loss,
total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended as on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the standards on auditing
specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of Ind AS financial
statements section of our report. We are Independent of the Company in accordance with the code of
ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, The
other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report including Annexures
to Directors’ Report and Shareholder’s Information but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of Directors

are responsible for overseeing the Company’s }paagi,a]lf;ep{rﬁng process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s.report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
based on these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may-feasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and

where applicable, related safeguarc]f 5\5’}:" o \_ ‘,;\.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the' "Annexure-
A" a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d

g)

ii.

iii.

iv.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind-AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023,
and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

Since the Company is a subsidiary of a Public Company therefore, the Company is required
to get an audit opinion with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls. With
respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure ‘B’ wherein we have expressed an
unmodified opinion.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the information and explanations given to us:

The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind-AS Financial
Statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There was no amount required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the company

a. The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
company ("Ultimate Bel}gﬁ_giériegf') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Bérfeficiaries, o\
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b. The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds have been received by the
company from any persons or entities including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. :

V. The company has not declared/ paid any dividend during the year.

Vi, Proviso to Rule 3(1) of Companies (Accounts) Rule, 2014 for maintaining books of
accounts using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility is applicable to the company with the effect from April 1, 2023, and
accordingly reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Sehgal Mehta & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure- “A” referred to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2023)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company
and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased
manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the same have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(c) The Company doesn’t own any immovable property; hence Para 3(1)(c) of the order is not
applicable.

(d) The company has not revalued its Plant, Property or equipment during the year, hence, Para
3(1) (d) of the order is not applicable.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
March 31, 2023, for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made there under.

ii. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the management has conducted the physical verification of inventory at
reasonable intervals. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of the inventory as
compared to book records has been properly dealt with in the books of account were not material

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limit in excess of Z5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

iii. The Company has not made any investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or granted unsecured loans to other parties, during the year; hence reporting under
clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has
neither given any loan, security, guarantee to any other person or other body corporate nor made
any investment during the year in respect of which section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
are applicable. Accordingly, the provision of clause(iv) of paragraph 3 of the Qrder is not applicahle
to the company.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits; hence,
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicabléy =7
YOG




vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the
Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii. (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Income-Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax and any
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31,
2023, for a period of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no due of Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Excise Duty, Custom Duty, Service Tax or Goods and Services Tax as at March 31,
2023, which has not been deposited on account of any dispute.

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961).

ix. (@) The Company has not taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the
government and has not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(b) Since the Company has not taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the
government hence, clause (b) of Para 3(ix) is not applicable.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding term
loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds have been
raised on short-term basis hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(¢) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix) (f)
of the Order is not applicable.

X. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.
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(¢) According to the information and explanations whistle- blower complaints have

been received by the company.




xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable and hence are not commented upon.

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

xiv. (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company does not require to have an
internal audit system. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) There is no requirement for the company for an Internal Audit as per provisions of Sec 138
of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting under clause 3 (xiv)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has incurred cash losses in the financial year. Amount of cash loss during the
financial year is Rs. 64,665,008.38

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. There are no amounts required to be spent towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as
per Sec 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, hence reporting under clause 3 (xx) of the Order is not
applicable.




Annexure- “B” referred to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
section of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2023)

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Napino Digital Solutions
Private Limited (‘the Company’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note®)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Jjudgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statp:iaents,lyhether due to fraud or error.
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5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the' Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI

For Sehgal Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003330N
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NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U31904HR2021PTC095310

BALANCE SHEET as at 31st March 2023

Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

— As at As at
FACCulay NoteNo- 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 3,417.83 0.00
(b) Intangible assets 4a 327.86 498.92
(c) Intangible assets under development 4b 1,224.99 0.00
4,970.69 498.92
Current assets
(a) Inventories 6 5,862.46 0.00
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 7a 915.35 0.00
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7b 23,335.16 56,852.04
(iii) Other financial assets 7c 1,566.68 0.00
(c) Other current assets 8 3,442.70 5,912.81
35,122.34 62,764.85
Total Assets 40,093.03 63,263.78
II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
() Equity share capital 9 63,000.00 63,000.00
(b) Other equity 10 -64,829.37 -121.29
Total Equity -1,829.37 62,878.71
Liabilties
Non - Current liabilities 5
() Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 69.96 25.67
69.96 25.67
Current liabilities '
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 11a 18,732.78 331.37
small enterprises; and
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities 11b 7,635.10 15.00
(b) Other current liabilities 12 12,579.45 13.02
(c) Provisions 13 2,905.12 0.00
41,852.45 359.39
Total equity and liabilities 40,093.03 63,263.78

Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2




As per our report of even date

For Sehgal Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:003330N
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CA Vinay Kumar Sehgal' | 2
Partner G

MemeBrship No: 080517

Place: Gurugram

Date: 01/09/2023

For Napino Digital Solutions Private Limited

-

VIPIN JA
Director

DIN: 00032931
Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/09/2023
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HITESH KUMAR
Company Secretary
M.No ACS 55542

Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/09/2023

VAIBHAV RAHEJA
Director

DIN: 00053672
Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/09/2023



NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U31904HR2021PTC095310

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

5 Note For the year ended For the year ended
Partigujays No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I Revenue from Operations 14 34,679.37 0.00
II Other income 15 4,644.41 0.00
III Total income (I + IT) 39,323.78 0.00
IV Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 16 17,047.69 0.00
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 17 918.30 0.00
Employee benefits expense 18 61,897.25 0.00
Depreciation and amortisation expense 19 610.38 1.08
Other expenses 20 23,515.18 94.49
Total expenses 1,03,988.79 95.57
V  Profit/ (loss) before tax (III-1V) -64,665.01 -95.57
V1 Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax 4 -44.24 -25.72
Total tax expense -44.24 -25.72
VII Profit/ loss for the year (V-VI) -64,709.24 -121.29
VIII Other Comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Re-measurement (loss) /gain on defined benefit plans 21 1.16
Income tax effect 0.30
Total other Comprehensive income for the year 0.86 0.00
IX  Total Comprehensive income of the year (VII+VIII) -64708.38 -121.29
Earnings per equity share (of Rs. 10 each) in Rs.
(1) Basic 22 -10.27 -0.02
(2) Diluted -10.27 -0.02
Summary of significant accounting policies 1-2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements
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For Sehgal Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Director
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NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U31904HR2021PTC095310

Statement or Standalone cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2023
Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Profit / loss before tax (64,665.01) (95.57)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 610.38 1.08
Other comprehensive income 1.162 -
Operating profit before working capital changes (64,053.47) (94.49)
Adjustment for movement in working capital changes
Trade receivables (915.35) -
Other financial assets (1,566.68) -
Other current assets 2,470.11 (5,912.81)
Inventories (5,862.46) -
Trade payables 18,401.41 331.37
Other financial liabilities 7,620.10 15.00
Other current liabilities 12,566.43 13.02
Provisions 2,905.12 -
Cash generated from operations (28,434.79) (5,647.91)
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds)
Net cash generated in operating activities (28,434.79) (5,647.91)
Cash flow from investing activities
Investment in Intangible Assets (1,224.99) (500.00)
Investment in Tangible Assets (3,857.15) -
Net cash generated/(used) in investing activities (5,082.14) (500.00)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital - 63,000.00
Dividend paid to equity holders (including dividend distribution tax)
Net cash generated from financing activities - 63,000.00
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (33,516.94) . 56,852,09
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 56,852.09 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 23,335.16 56,852.09
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cheques on hand 10.00 -
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 22,547.96 56,852.04
- Balance with currency card -
- Fixed deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less 518.77 5
- Forex in card 258.43 -
23,335.16 56,852.04




Notes:

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7

"Statement of Cash Flows

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Sehgal Mehta & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN:003330N

\
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CA Vinay Kumar Sehgal
Partner
Memebrship No: 080517
Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/09/2023

For Napino Digital Solutions Private Limited
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(VIPIN RAHEJA) (VAIBHAV RAHEJA)
Director Director
DIN: 00032931 DIN: 00053672
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/09/2023 Date: 01/09/2023

e
HITESH KUMAR
Company Secretary
M.No ACS 55542
Place: Gurugram

Date: 01/09/2023



NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U31904HR2021PTC095310

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2023
Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

A Equity share capital

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Memebrship No: 080517
Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/09/2023

DIN: 00032931
Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/09/2023

DIN: 00053672
Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/09/2023

Particulars Number of shares Amount
Opening Balance 6,300.00 63,000.00
Shares issued during the year - S
As at 31 March 2023 6,300.00 63,000.00
B Other equity
Particulars Reserves and surplus Total equity
General reserve Retained earnings
(refer note 15) (refer note 15)
Opening Balance - (121.29) (121.29)
Profit for the year - (64,709.24) (64,709.24)
Other comprehensive income - 1.16 1.16
Dividend paid during the year - - -
Dividend distribution tax - - -
Total comprehensive income - (64,829.37) (64,829.37)
Transfer (to) / from General Reserve - - =
Equity share issued during the year - - -
Transfer (to) / from General Reserve - - -
At 31 March 2023 - (64,829.37) (64,829.37)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Standalone financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Sehgal Mehta & Co. For Napino Digital Solutions Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
FRN:003330N
_ A
} \ S , s ,ka 1
Ny Aghiew pubh

CA Vinay Kumar Selfgal_~  VIPINRAHEJA  VAIBHAV RAHEJA HITESH KUMAR
Partner ‘ Director Director Company Secretary

M. No ACS 55542
Place: Gurugram
Date: 01/09/2023



NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31
March, 2023

1. Corporate Information

Napino Digital Solutions Private Limited was incorporated on May 31, 2021 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 applicable in India. The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Napino Auto
and Electronics Private Limited. The Company is domiciled in India. Its registered office is located at

Gurgaon.
The Company is currently operating at the following premises: -

* Registered Office: Plot No. 7, Sector 3, IMT Manesar, Gurugram
* Office 1: Plot No. 441, Sector-8, IMT Manesar, Gurugram
e Office 2: Unitno. 1 & 2 Ground Floor, Tower B, Unitech Cyber Park, Sector-39

The Company is in the business of providing Electronics/IoT product design related services ie.,
Hardware Lifecycle Management, Cloud Integration, Application Development, Managed Support &
Services, Fast Prototype built & testing, Testing & certification, Value engineering-design & cost

optimization,

The financial statements of the Company were authorized for issue by the Company’s board of directors on

1 September, 2023,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant schedule III) as applicable to these standalone financial
statements.

The Company has prepared the standalone financial statements on the basis that it will continue to
operate as going concern. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated. The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except for the following assets and liabilities

(i) Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value

(i) Assets held for sale-measured at fair value less cost to sell

7 WMEHTY
VSR,

(iii) Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value S




2.2. Current vs. non-current

23

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting-period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The term of the liability that could, at the option of counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue
of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Inventories

Inventories include raw material, finished goods and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost
and net realizable value. The Cost in respect of various items of inventory is computed as under

Raw materials and packing material are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. However, these
items are considered to be realizable at cost if the finished products, in which they will be used, are
expected to be sold at or above cost. The cost includes direct expenses and is determined on the basis
of weighted average method

Work in progress: at estimated cost. The cost includes the cost of raw materials, packing materials, an
appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads as applicable and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Finished goods - at estimated cost or net realizable value, whichever is less. The cost includes the cost
of raw materials, packing materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable production overheads
as applicable and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary courseéﬁ;umness less any applicable

selling expenses. Provision for expired stock and slow-moving‘;;j'avéntory, if r'(_eqluired is made based
1 ITRAZ T ,," .:l: .
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on management’s best estimates of net realizable value of such inventories.

Property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises the purchase
price and any attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any
trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included
in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits attributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item will flow
to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss
as incurred. ‘

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line method. The following
useful life of assets has been taken by the Company:

Asset class Useful Lives
Plant and equipment | 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Vehicles 8/10 years
Office equipment’s 5 years
Computers 3/6 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has
been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed, or significant components replaced; depreciation on
such assets is calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific useful life from the month
of such addition or, as the case may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded,
demolished or destroyed or replaced. -

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance
sheet date is classified as capital advances under other non-current assets and the cost of assets not put
to use before such date are disclosed under “capital work-in-progress’

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is de-recognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net.disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss:,\#l?féhi the

asset is derecognized. : V



2.5 Intangible assets
Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets (including Brands/trademarks) acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent measurement (amortization)

All intangible assets are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalized costs are amortized
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life of an identifiable
intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological
advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows
from the asset.

The cost thereof is amortized over a period of 3-5 years. The amortization period and the amortization
method for intangible assets are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated
as changes in accounting estimates.

Revenue expenditure on research is recognized as expense in the year in which it is incurred and are
included with the respective nature of account heads in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are
recognized as an Intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

* The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use
or sale.

* Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset
* How the asset will generate future economic benefits.

* The availability of resources to complete the asset

* The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost
less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset
begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period
of expected future benefit. Amortization expense is recognized in the statement of profit-and loss
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset S

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually. y



2.6 Retirement and other employee benefits
Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting period and are
measured at the amount expected to be paid at undiscounted value when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity

The Employee’s Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust with its
investments maintained with Life insurance Corporation of India. The liabilities with respect to
Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method on the balance
sheet date, based upon which the Company contributes to the Gratuity Scheme. The difference, if any,
between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds
is provided for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognizes the following changes in the
net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements.

b) Net interest expense or income. Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the
effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Defined contribution plan - Provident fund and employee state insurance

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable through provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related services. If the contribution payable to scheme for service received before the balance sheet
date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excesses recognized as an asset to the
extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Other long term employee benefit - Compensated absence

Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed after the balance
sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary
using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which such
gains or losses are determined. The Company presents the entire leave as a current liability in the
balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months 4fter
the reporting date '




2.7 Taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in
respect of current and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income-tax Act, 1961 and respective local jurisdictions of members of the Company.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates
and generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss
is recognized outside profit or loss (either in OCI or in equity).

Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company
recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences
or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such
deferred tax asset can be realized.

The Company's ability to recover the deferred tax assets is assessed by the management at the close
of each financial year which depends upon the forecasts of the future results and taxable profits that
Company expects to earn within the period by which such brought forward losses may be adjusted
against the taxable profits as governed by the Income-tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced to the
extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle deferred tax liabilities and assets on
a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are recognized on the unrealized profit for all the inter-company sale/ purchase
eliminations of property, plant and equipment and inventories.

Deferred tax on business combination - When a liability assumed is recognized at the acquisition date
but the related costs are not deducted in determining taxable profits until a later period;a‘deducible,
temporary difference arises which results in a deferred tax asset. A deferred tax asset also‘arises whe.\




the fair value of an identifiable asset acquired is less than its tax base. In both cases, the resulting
deferred tax asset affects goodwill.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
to able entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

2.8 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date.
These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present
value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. When provisions are discounted, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed for

* Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of
the Company; or

* Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be
made. Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable,
related asset is disclosed.

2.9 Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events
such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation
of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares.

2.10 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash
receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. Cash
and Cash Equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and 'on hand‘and
bank deposit with banks where original maturity is three months or less. :



2.11 Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the
reported amount of income and expenses.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Future results could differ due to
changes in these estimates and difference between the actual result and the estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known /materialized.

In order to enhance understanding of the financial statements, information about significant areas of
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
cffect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is as under:

Provisions: Provisions are determined based on estimation to settle the obligation at balance sheet date.
Contingent Liabilities/Assets: Contingent Liabilities/Assets are disclosed based on judgment of
management, are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect current management

estimate.

Impairment test of non-financial assets: The recoverable amount of Property, Plant and Equipment is
determined based on judgment of assumptions of technical experts.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets: Deferred Tax Asset is recognized based.on :
probability of future taxable income against which the deferred tax can be utilized. /4524 4




NAFINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U31904HR2021PTC095310
Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2023
Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

3 Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital work in progress

4a

Particulars

Plantand | Furniture Office Computers Total
equipment | and fixtures| equipment
Gross block
As at April 01, 2022 = - . - -
Add: Additions made during the Period 2,082.90 28.08 37895 | 1,367.22 3,857.15
Add: Transferred from CWIP during the Year - - - - -
Less: Disposals /adjustments during the Period - - - - -
Less:Transferred during the Period - - & & s
As at March 31, 2023 2,082,90 28.08 378.95 1,367.22 3,857.15
Depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 - - - - -
Add: Depreciation charge for the Period 9.15 2.63 67.69 359.85 439.32
Less: On disposals / adjustments during the Period - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 9.15 2,63 67.69 359.85 439.32
Net block
As at March 31, 2022 - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 2,073.75 25.45 311.26 1,007.37 3,417.83
Intangible assets and Intangible assets under development
Particulars Computer Total Intangible
softwares assets under
development |
Gross block - - .
As at April 01, 2022 500.00 500.00 -
Add: Additions made during the Period - - 1,224,99
Add: Transferred from CWIP during the Year - - -
Less: Disposals /adjustments during the Period - - -
Less:Transferred during the Period - - -
As at March 31, 2023 500.00 500.00 1,224.99
' Depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 1.08 1.08 -
Add: Depreciation charge for the Period 171.06 171.06 -
Less: On disposals / adjustments during the Period - - -
As at March 31,2023 172.14 172.14 -
Net block
As at March 31, 2022 498.92 498.92 -
As at March 31, 2023 327.86 327.86 1,224.99




4b Ageing of Intangible assets under development

The table below analyse the capital work-in-progress ageing:

31-Mar-23
Particulars Amount in Intangible under development for a period of
Lessthan1 1-2years  2-3years More than3 Total
year years
Intangible assets under development* 1,224.99 - - - 1,224.99
1,224,99 - - - 1,224.99

31-Mar-22

Particulars

Amount in Intangible under development for a period of
Less than1  1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years

Intangible assets under development*

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00




NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN - U31904HR2021PTC095310

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2023

Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

5 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

A. Deferred Tax Liability
Opening Balance

Add:- Addition

Less: Reversal

Total of Deferred Tax Liability

Net Deferred Tax (Liability)/ Assets

6 Inventories

(At lower of cost or net realisable value )
Raw Material

Work in Progress

Finished Goods

Total

7 Financial Assets - Current

7a Trade Recievables

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

Total

7b Cash and Cash equivalents

Currency in Hand
Balances with banks:
—In Current Account
- In Fixed Deposit
Forex in hand

Total

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

25.72 0.00

44.24 25.72

- 0.00

69.96 25.72

69.96 25.72

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

4,944.16 -

917.20 -

1.10 -

5,862.46 0.00

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
915.35 -

915.35 0.00

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
10.00 .

22,547.96 56852.04

518.77 -

258.43 .

23,335.16 “ e 56852.04




7c Other Financial Assets

Security deposit

Other Current Assets

Capital advances
- Unsecured, considered good

(A)

Balances with goods and service tax authorities
- Unsecured, considered good

(B)
Others (Unsecured, considered good)
Prepaid expenses
Advance to Suppliers

Balance with Income Tax Authorities
Imprest to staff

©

(A+B)H(C)

For the yearended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,566.68 -

1,566.68 0.00

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

= 5820.00

- 5820.00
1,749.56 90.00
1,749.56 90.00
418.79 2.86
1,013.48 B
243.38 :
17.49 "
1,693.14 2.86
5912.86




NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U31904HR2021PTC095310

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2023
Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

9

9a

9b

9¢

10a

11

For the year ended For the year ended

Equity Share Capital 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Authorised share capital
70,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 70,000.00 70,000.00
(As at 31 March 2022, 70,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 70,000.00 70,000.00

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capital

63,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 63,000.00 63,000.00
(As at 31 March 2023, 63,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10 each) 63,000.00 63,000.00
For the year ended For the year ended

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the beginning = < - 5
Opening Balance 6,300.00 6,300.00 6,300.00 6,300.00
Shares Issued during the year - & = :
Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity Capital outstanding at the end of the year 6,300.00 6,300.00 6,300.00 6,300.00

Rights, Preference and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares referred to as equity shares having at par value of Rs 10/-. Each holder of one equity share is entitled to one
vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts,

Details of Shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company

Name of the shareholder No. of shares % of holding
Equity shares

Napino Auto and Electronics Limited 6,300.00 100.0%
Total 6,300.00 100.0%
Other Equity

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Retained Earnings (Refer Note 8.1) (64,829.37) (121.29)

Particulars

Total (64,829.37) (121.29)

Retained Earnings

For the year ended For the year ended

RSty IATE 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Opening Balance (121.29) -
Profit during the period (64,709.24) (121.29)
Add: Other comprehensive income 1.16 -
Closing Balance -64,829.37 -121.29

Nature and Purpose of Reserves:
(a) Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.

Financial Liabilities - Current



11a

11b

12

13

Trade Payables
Particulars

Trade Payables

Total

Other Financial Liabilitles
Particulars

Other Payables

Total

Other Current Ligbilities
Particulars

Statutory dues
Advance from Customer

Total

Provisions
Particulars

Gratuity Payable
Compensated absences
Bonus Payable

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
18,732.78 33137
18,732.78 331.37

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

7.635.10 15.00
7,635.10 15.00
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,928.22 13.02
10,651.22 -
12,579.45 13.02
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
619.19 -
674.83 -

1,611.10

2,905.12




NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
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Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31,2023
Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

14 Revenue from operations

15

16

Revenue from operations
Sale of products

- Within India

- Outside India

Rendering of services
Job work and other income
- Within India
- Outside India

Total

Other income

Interest income
Other Income

Total

Cost of raw materials consumed

Raw materials and components consumed

Movement of raw material and components consumed are as follows:
Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases made during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Cost of raw materials and components consumed

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

30,630.36
" 465.67

31,096.03

2,241.00
1,342.34

3,583.34

34,679.37

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

18.77
4,625.64

4,644.41

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

17,047.69

17,047.69

21,991.85
4,944.16

17,047.69




a) Details of changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

b) Detailed breakup of the changes in inventories of finished goods and

18

19

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work-in-

progress

are as follows:

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

work-in-progress are as follows:
Opening stock

Finished Goods

Work In Progress

Closing stock
Finished Goods
Work In Progress

Total

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Gratuity expense

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expense

Total

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4)

Total

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

918.30

918.30

L.10
917.20

918.30

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

57,838.41
670.35
2,997.70
390.79

61,897.25

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

439.32
171.06

1.08

610.38




For the year ended  For the year ended

20 Other expenses 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Auditer's Remuneration (Refer Note No- 20.1) 200.00 15.00
Advertisement 4.78 -
Bank Charges 16.45 3.78
Business Promotion 862.02 -
Commision 682.20 -
Consumables 1,105.88 -
Conveyance 2,236.12 -
Entertainment Exp 138.39 -
Exhibition Expenses 754.77 -
Fee & Subscription 726.40 38.60
Festival Exp 16.52 -
Fine & Penalty - 0.34
Freight 56.11 -
Insurance 958.76 -
Interest on GST 0.06 -
Job Work Charges 4,973.02 -
Legal & Professional 144.74 35.40
loss on Foreign Exchange 25.10 -
Miscellnous Exp/ Round off (0.75) -
Office Maint Expense 1,430.27 -
Postage& Telegram 12.73 -
Power & Fuel 424,59 -
Printing&Stationery 50.21 1.37
R&M - Machinery 49.50 -
R&M - Others 74.42 -
AMC - Software 1,018.50
Rates & Taxes 664.99 -
Recruitment Expenses 183.26 -
Rent 2,924.29 -
Telephone Exp 64.64 -
Tour & Travelling 2,105.78 -
Training Expenses 1,530.20 -
Uniform Exp 61.80 -
Water Expenditure 19.43 -
Total 23,515.18 94.49

20a

*Auditor's remuneration

As auditor:

Audit fee

In other capacity:
Taxation matters
Other services

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

200.00

15.00




21

22

Components of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI
Fair value gain on equity investments through other comprehensive income
Income tax effect

Re-measurement losses on defined benefit obligation
Income tax effect

Earnings per share (EPS)

The following reflects the profit and share data used for the basic and diluted
EPS computations:

Profit attributable to equity holders for basic earnings

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year (in nos.)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS &
diluted EPS (in nos)

Nominal value per share
Basic & diluted EPS

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.16 3
0.30 =
0.86 -
0.86 =
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(64,709.24) (121.29)
6,300.00 6,300.00
6,300.00 6,300.00
10.00 10.00
(0.02)

(10.27)
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23

Employee benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company makes contribution towards employees’ provident fund. Under the schemes, the Company is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost, as specified in the rules of the schemes to these defined contribution
schemes. The Company has recognised Rs. 2997697.30 (31 March 2022: Rs.0) as an expense towards contribution to

For the year ended For the year ended

Farticulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contribution to Provident Fund ‘ 2,910.98 -
Contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 34.05 -
Contribution to Employee' State Insurance Scheme 52.67 -
Total 2,997.70 =

b) Defined Benefit Plans
i) Gratuity:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five
years of service are entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member’s length of service
and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn for each
completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months. The same is payable on termination of service or
retirement or death whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the
reporting date using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional
unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligations
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the date of
actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses (net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI).

This is a funded benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company makes contributions to LIC policy to cover the
liability. This scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or
on termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. ;




These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, inherent interest rate risk, longevity

risk and salary risk.

Investment Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
(denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated using a
discount rate which is determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds. Currently for the plan in India, it
has a relatively balanced mix of investments in
government securities, and other debt instruments.

Interest Rate Risk

The defined benefit obligation calculation uses a
discount rate based on government bonds. If bond
yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to
increase

Longevity Risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability
is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after
their employment. An increase in the life expectancy
of the plan participants will increase the plan’s
liability.

Salary Risk

Higher than expected increase in salary will increase
the defined benefit obligation

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and the funded status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Change in benefit obligation

Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year
Add: Current service cost

Add: Past service cost

Add: Interest cost

Add: Actuarial (gain) / loss

Less: Benefits paid

670.35

Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

670.35 o

Change in plan assets

Plan assets at the beginning of the year

Add: Expected return on plan assets

Add: Contribution by the Company

Less: Amount received from fund against payment made through
provision

Less: Benefits paid

Add: Actuarial gain / (loss)

Plan assets at the end of the year

Liability/ (Asset) recognized in the financial statements




Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current service cost 670.35 -

Net interest expense/ (income)

Total 670.35 -

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
For the year ended For the year ended

F b 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Changes in demographic assumptions

Changes in financial assumptions

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 1.16
expense)

Experience adjustments
Total 1.16 -

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended

Gratuity 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Investment Details Funded Funded
Investment with Insurer (LIC) 100% A

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown below:

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate (%) 7.39%
Expected rate of return on Plan assets (%)
Future salary increases (%) 5.50%
Retirement Age (Years) 58
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 years 3.00%

From 31 to 44 years ' 2.00%

Above 44 years 1.00%

100 % of IALM

Monality rate (2012 . 14)




A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at 31 March 2023 is as shown below:

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability L e T For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Impact on change in discount rate 670.35
Present value of obligation at the end of the year

-Impact due to increase of 0.5% -53.49
~Impact due to decrease of 0.5% 59.19
Impact on change in discount rate 670.35
Present value of obligation at the end of the year

-Impact due to increase of 0.5% 60.00
-Impact due to decrease of 0.5% -54.64

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on the method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivities as
to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payments, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life
expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement,

The following payments are maturity profile to the defined benefit obligation in future years:

Year For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Oto! Year 1.46
1to2 Year 1.54
2t03 Year 1.83
3to4 Year 2,02
4t05 Year 11.55
5to 6 Year 11.06
6 Year onwards 640.90
Total expected payments 670.35 0

ii) Other long-term employee benefits Ps :,:1 AEHT,
An amount of Rs.674,825 pertains to expense towards compensated absences.



0 = LTTLTD ] Yy efoyey] euepuey -
0 LTTLTL oy eloyey uidip JNDI Y

TTOT YoIel 1€ €T0T Y2IeN 1€
POpUd 183X 9y} 104 PaIPUI 183X 9 J0Oq UOIJIBSURI) JO INJBN] Ayreg pajzejas ay) jo oweN diysuoneoy

:MopRq
S8 218 soned pojejaa yum uondesued) jo iepRq  (q

saIMua A Yoo, ourden

Suipe1], efoyey A

paNWI] SjeALg SIS0[ouyos], NAAA

pauwlg sreAlg Surdexoeq 7 seouerddy snorusSuy
PayWIT 31ALI SOIUOLRYOSJN outwio(] ourden

PIANWIT 3)eAL SOIUONOI]H SO [epusuniuo)) ourdeny
PaNW] jRAR WANSAS [oxuo0) ourdenN

PONWIT SJRALJ SOINJUS A YOI ], 93e[]assa],

PIIWIT 9JBALI] SILISNPU] ARYQIEA NUYSTA

PaNw eAlq A310ug 01 NAO

pajul] sjeAlld s[asa1q 4L

pauwry Syeaud deour nemsereg

s1osuIuy Surpeay,

P3N speAlld s1asuiduy Sulpel] NAQ

PaNWIT $o1UCKO3[g pue oy ourdeN

duINUI JUBIPIUSIS IABY JIN YPIYA Ul SapBU T

(30300017) -eloyey Avyqep s
(1o10211) -vfoyey uidiA I
[Puuosiad JuduaSeue A3 ']

digsuoneaa K1ed payepaa pue sanued pajejaa jo sowey (&
suondesuey) Ayaed paepPy  pz

P3)E}S 3SIMII0 SSIUN ‘spuBsnoOY) YN Ul Junowry

£70T ‘1€ Y2BI\ PIPUD POLId] SY) 10J SYUSLISIE)S [eIoUBUL 03 S3j0N
0I€S60DLAIZTOTAHYO6IEN - NID

QALIATT ALVATId SNOLLOTOS TV.LIOIA ONIdVN



= E i 7 = ) uonesuaduwod jejo],
000 00°0 ) 55 efoyey Aeyqrep
000 000 o= efoyey urdip
»»SIJOUIQ [BdIPow pue- Aymje.3 Suipnpuy JuomAojduia-3sog

00°0 00°0 <UoneIuNway eloyey Aeyqiep
000 00°0 sUOhEIUNWSY elyey uidip
MOUG JudwdLojdwd W) JI0yg

0T Y218 1€ £T0T Y18 ¢

POPUD 183X 3Y) 10 PIPUD JEIA dY} J0f

UOI)IESUEI} JO JAMIEN A1eg parejaa ay) jo swmeN

Auedmod 3y) 3o [Puuosiad JuomwaseuEw A3 Jo uonesuadwo))

saresado Ared pajeral oy yorym ul e 3y pue Aured pajejaa s jo vonisod [eroueuy oy Suunwexs ySnoay; 1eak

[BISUBUL 4oBa uayenapun ul juswssasse siy 1, saiied pajeja1 £q pamo sjunowe o3 Sunejai $3]qrAI20a1 JO JusuLredun Aue papIosal jou sey Luedwo)) ay1 ‘€z0z YoIely | € papue
12o£ oY) 10 *sajqeked 10 sajqeAeoar Aued Pa3e|21 Ared pajejal Aue J0j paAranal 1o papiaoid aojuesens ou U339 SABY 2101 ], "YSEI Ul SINIIO JUIWI|ISS PUE 221f 1SIJUT puB
painoasun ate pua Jeak ay) Je seouejeq Sulpuelsing ‘uonoesues }3us) s ul jreasrd yey asoy o3 juajEAINba suus) uo apew axe sanred parejai woJy aseyoind pue ajes sy

sonaed pajEas Yiim SUOHDIESUERL) JO SHOIIIPUOD PUE SULID L

payuny
000 18°8% Sjqedeq SyeAL] SAZo[oUYIDT, NAAA
ponuIy speAuq SumSexyoeq
0070 00'0 Jlqedeq spei], pue saouerddy snosuiSuy
86'SSSY s|qedeq opei],
payury
000 08°S¥1 9]qeded juoy SoIuoN3lHq pue oy ourdeN 2duanpyul JuedyIuSis JAY JIN YPIYA W ssynuy °g
00'0 25991 dlqedeq uoy eloyey euepuep
00°0 75991 3|qeed juoy efoyey widip dN Y
TT0T YIE T¢ €707 Y21B|\ I€
PIpUd 183X 1) 104 PIPUd IBIX A} 10 UONIESURI} JO dANM)BN] Ayreg pajepoa o o sweN diysuonepy
9SIDIIX3 0) I|qE I Jey)} IAPE}RI JIY) puE Puuossad JusmaSeuem A3 Aq (31qeAIR22.) ; ajquAed ueleq Jospeag (@
payuny
000 o'y SJ9SSY/SPOOL) JO aseyding 3YeAll{ SAIZ0IoUYos ] NAAA
swiayl A1suolels pue panwry 3«35 SmSeyoeg
000 SI'12 d]qewnsuos‘3uryorg Jo oseyoIng Ppue sasuerddy snoswSug
18°0V1°T Auedwos Juipjoy £q pred sasuadxy
0¥°€L9°9 SSHOJULAU] /SPOOL) JO aseydIng
panuig
00°0¥S juoy SOlUONdI[Y pue oy ouldeN sduInpyul JuedIUSIS SARY JIAD YDIYAA Ul sonpnuy g



NAPINO DIGITAL SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN - U31904HR2021PTC095310
Notes to financial statements for the Period ended March 31, 2023
Amount in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated

25

Financial instruments by Category

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial Assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables ) 915.35 . 915.35 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 23,335.16 23,335.16 56,852.04 56,852.04
Other financial assets 1%566.68 1,566.68 - .
Total financial assets 25,817.18 25,817.18 56,852.04 56,852.04
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 18,732.78 18,732.78 331.37 33137
Other financial liabilities 7,635.10 7,635.10 15.00 15.00
Total financial liabilities 26,367.88 26,367.88 346.37 346.37

The carrying amount of trade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents are considered
to be the same as their fair values, due to short-term in nature. The carrying value of the amomsed ﬁqanclal assets and
liabilities approximate to the fair value on the respective reporting dates !
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26 Disclosure required under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from customers

A A Disaggregation of revenue

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Sale of products

Revenue from sale of goods - within India 30,630.36

Revenue from sale of goods - outside India 465.67

Job work and other income (within India) 2,241.00

Total 33,337.03 -

B  Contract Balances
The following table provides information about contract liabilities from contract with customers:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contract Liabilities :

Advance from customers 10,651.22 -

Total contract liabilities 10,651.22 -

Receivable is the right to consideration in exchange of goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract
liability is the entity's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the entity has received
consideration from the customer in advance

C Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year as follows:
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Contract liabilities Contract liabilities
Particulars Advance from customers Advance from customers
Opening Balance - -
Addition during the year 10,651.22 -
Revenue recognised during the year - -
Closing balance 10,651.22 -

The amount receivable from customers become due after expiry of credit period which is on average is less than
60 days. There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.

The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods are
for a shorter duration. There are no contracts for sale of services wherein, performance obllgatlon is unsatisfied

to which transaction price has been allocated k}
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27 Ageing of trade receivables and trade payables as per Schedule ITI

a) Trade receivables ageing

The table below analyse the outstanding trade receivables:

31-Mar-23
Particulars Qutstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 6 month to 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables- 915.35 915.35
considered good
915.35 - 915.35
31-Mar-22
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 6 month to 1 year 1-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables- -
considered good
Note: There are no unbilled receivables, hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule.
b) Trade payables ageing
The table below analyse the outstanding trade payables:
J1-Mar-23 g
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Not yet due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years _ Total
MSME -
Others (undisputed) 3,752.26 14,980.53 18,732.78
3,752.26 14,980.53 18.732.78
31-Mar-22
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Not yet due __Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
MSME -
Others (undisputed) 331.37 331.37
- 331.37 4 331.37




28 Ratio Disclosures

Particulars

Numerator

Denominator

Previous Year

% Variance

Reasons for Variance

Current ratio

Debt - Equity ratio

Debt service coverage ratio

Return on equity ratio

Inventory turnover ratio
Trade receivables turnover ratio

Trade payables turnover ratio
Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio
Return on capital cmployed

Return on investment

Current Assets

Total debt

Earnings before
interest, tax and
exceptional items

Net Profits after taxes
— Preference Dividend
(if any)

Cost of goods sold
Net Credit Sales

Net Credit
Purchases

Net Sales

Net Profit
Earning before
interest and taxes

Profit after tax

Current liability

Shareholders
equity
Debt Service

Average
Shareholder’s
Equity

Average Inventory
Average Accounts
Receivable
Average Trade
Payables

Working Capital
Net Sales

Capital Employed

Investment

Current Year

0.84

NA

NA

-211.99%

6.13
18.94

231
-5.15

-186%
35135

35.37

174.64

NA

NA

-0.30%

-0.002

-0.002

-99.52%
The increase in current
ratio is due to increase
in both current assets as
well as current liabilties
NA

NA

69638.39%| The fall in Return on

equity is due to losses
suffered in the current
year.

-2325803.21%|The fall in Return on

capital employed is due
to losses suffered in the
current year.

-1833878.62%|The fall in Return on

investment is due to
losses suffered in the
current year,
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29 Previous years comparatives
Figures for the previous year have been re-Companyed/re-classified wherever necessary.
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Walker Chandick & Co LLP
21 Fipor, DLF Square
P Jacaranta Marg, DLF Phase I
Independent Auditor’s Report Gurigram _ 122 002
India
T +81 124 4625059
F+81 124 46253111

To the Members of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited
{"the Company'}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the [ndian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS" specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules,
2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
31 March 2023, and its loss (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Respansibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {'ICAI'} together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and apprepriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalane financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

The Director's report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing” fgﬁ@nﬁx

in this regard. / N
Chartered fecountants VWalker Chandiok & Co LLP |s repi

with limitad lizbility with identification
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited on the audit of
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

5. The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company's Board of
Directors. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that give a frue
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial confrols, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ahility to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

7. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

8. Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our cpinjon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3Xi) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such contrals;

+« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the geing concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenis or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify.our
apinicn. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor 5 repor‘t
However, future events or cenditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as agmng concem \
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10.

11.

12.

13.

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited on the audit of
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order') issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure |, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report,
to the extent applicable, that.

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone financial
statements;

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears frem our examination of those books;

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d} Inour opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act;

g) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

fi  With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the cperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Repart in Annexure |l wherein we have expressed an unmaodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our cpinicn and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company, as detailed in note 37(b) to the standalone financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023;

ii. The Company did not have any lang-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited on the audit of
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 {cont’d}

v,
a.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 52(e} to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
ar invested (either from borrowed funds ar securities premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the
intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 52(f) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company frorn any person or entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

v.  The Company has net declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2023.

Vi, Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use
accounting software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software
which has a feature of audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) is not applicable for the current financial year.

For Walker Cha

ndiok & Co LLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registrati

— oo

Tarun Gupta
Partner

Membership No.; 507892

on No.; 001076N/N500013

UDIN: 23507892BGXQZY8508

Place: Gurugram
Date: 28 September 2023
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited on the standalone financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 20223

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and

belief, we report that.

() (&

(b}

(c)

(A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and right of use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and right of use assets under which the assets are physically verified in a
phased manner over a period of three years, which in cur opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this
programme, certain property, plant and equipment and right of use assets were verified
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the Company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) disclosed in note 3 to the standalone financial statements are held in the name
of the Company, except for the following properties, for which the Company's management
is in the process of getting the registraticn in the name of the Company:

(Z in million)
Description | Gross Held in name | Whether Period | Reason for not
of property | carrying | of promoter, held being held in
value director or name of
their relative company
or employee
Building 22.75 | Sanjeev Kumar | No 31 Company is in
Gupta and March | the process of
Sandhya 2023 getting the name
Sadasivan transferred.
Gupta

{(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment including Right of Use

assets or intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any

benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals

during the year, except for goods-in-transit and inventory lying with third parties. In our
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate
and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed as compared to book records.

(b) As disclosed in note 51 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been

Chartered Acccuntants

sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of Rs 50.00 million by banks based on the
security of current assets. The quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the warking
capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such returns/statements
are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods
which were/were not subject to audit/review, except for the following:
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Annexure [ referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’'s Report of even date to the
members of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited on the standalone financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 2023 (cont'd)

| Nameof | Working | Quarter | Nature of | Information | Information | Difference (2
Bank capital limit current as per disclosed in million)
sanctioned assets books of as per
(Z in million) offered as | accounts (T | return (% in
security in million) millicn)
HDFC 950.00 Trade 1,633.38 1,484.65 148.73
Bank Payable '
B Jun-ao | Inventory 2,120.32 2,138.83 {18.51)
Citi Bank 500.00 Trade 2,269.88 2,320.23 {50.35)
Receivable -
Axis Bank | 300.00 Total 6,023.59 5,943.71 79.88
Trade 2,132.75 1,908.25 224.50
Payable |
Sep-22 Inventory 2,582.33 2,5682.33 -
Trade 2,288.34 2,081.84 206.50
Receivable
Total 7,003.42 6.572.42 431.00
Trade 1,425.57 1,273.13 152.44
Payable
Inventory 2,273.34 2,273.34 -
Dec-22 I rade 2,348.88 2,025.05 323.83
Receivable -
Total 6,047.79 5,571.52 476.27
Trade 2,035.91 1,589.76 446.15
Payable
Mar-23 Inventory 2,636.55 2,265.30 371.25
Trade 2,434.50 2,.478.23 {43.73)
Receivable
Total 7,106.96 6,333.29 773.67

The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

(i)

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of secticn 186 of the Act in respect of investments made
and guarantees provided by it, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered info
any transaction covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act in respect of loans
granted and security provided by it.

(iv)

In aur apinian, and acnording to the infarmation and explanations given ta us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the OW
piitha Tasie, lhe presuibed ausuunls and euuids have been made and pia =

However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vi)

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure [ referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited on the standalone financial statements for the

year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

{vii) (&) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added
tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, though there have been slight
delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

{b) According to the information and explanaticns given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities

on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of | Nature Gross Amount paid | Period to | Forum where | Remarks,
the ofdues | Amount (Z | under which the | dispute is | ifany
statute in mifiion} | Protest (% in | amount pending
million) relates
Sales Tax | Central 16.79 0.20 | 2015-18 Assessing
Laws Sales Officer
Tax

Service Service 27.68 Nil | 2005-06 to | CESTAT (The
Tax, Tax 2014-15 Customs
1994 {input} Excise &

Service Tax

Appellate

Tribunal)
Income Income 30.09 30.08 | 2022-23 Assessing
Tax tax Officer
Act, 1961

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, ne transactions were surrendered or

disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961 (43

of 19681) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix} (&) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its lcans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from
the management of the Company, and cn the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the
Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or

government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any maney by way of term loans during the year and there has been no utilisation
during the current year of the term loans obtained by the Company during any previous years.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short

term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examinatfg.n'ﬁ_fflﬁ’__e:?‘\\
financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any'-..enﬁty or ™
persan on account of or o meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associate or joint vE‘n’ture.

. |
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Annexure | referred te in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Napine Auto and Electronics Limited on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

{f

x) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint venture or associate

company.

The Company has not raised any money by way of Initial public offer or further pubiic offer
{including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
pfacement of shares or {fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{x){b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi}y {a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given fo us, no

fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit,

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to

{c

—

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv} (a)

us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the

Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act, where applicable. Further, the details of such related party fransactions have been
disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard
{Ind AS} 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

{b} We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

Chartered Accountants

period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
ncn-cash transactions with its directors aor persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directicns, 2018) does not have any Core Investment Company, ;
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Annexure | referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited on the standalone financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (cont’d)

{xvii)

{xvili}

{xix)

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutery auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under ctause 3{xviii) of the Crder is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the standaicne financial statements, our knowledge of the plans
of the Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come toc our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meseting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as fo the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporiing is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx} (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards

Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining o other than ongoing projects as at end of the current
financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{(x){a) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(b) Accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred the

{xxi)

remaining unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) under sub-section
{b) of section 135 of the Act, in respect of ongoing project, within a period of 30 days from the
end of financial year to a special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (8} of
section 135 of the Act,

The reporting under clause 3(xxi} of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no cemment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

T T

Tarun Gupta (=f \

Partner

Membership No.: 507892 AN

UDIN: 23507892BGXQZY8508

Place: Gurugram
Date: 22 September 2023
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Annexure Il

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
financial statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Napino Auto and Electronics Limited
{'the Company’} as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential compenents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘ICAF). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

3. Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controfs with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

4. Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial staterents includes obtaining an understanding of such
internal financial controls, assessing the risk that 2 material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed o
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reascnable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {2} provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that recelpts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) pravide
reasonable assurance regardlng prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acqmsmon Uuse, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statfémehts N\
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Annexure |l to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Napino Auto and
Electronics Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. Inour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

,/ram,u\/

Tarun Gupta NDIEN
Partner (o7 NEN
Membership No.: 507892 1574 \ ,_'__'“-\
H =
UDIN: 23507892BGXQZY8508 \2\ ))
\&\ /£
: % \“-u-..___,///”
Place: Gurugram D Accles

Date: 29 September 2023
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NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED
CIN - U34300HR1991PLC031470

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023
fdmount in T millions, unless otherwise stated)

i Asat As at
Hificiliars Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
(1} Non-current asscts
{s) Property, plant and equipment 3 1,404 28 1,478 53
(b} Right-of-uge assets ] 21371 212.20
(c) Capital work-in-progress 3 80.4¢ 2117
(d) Intangible assets 4 31,59 39,83
(2) Intangible assets under development 4 127.43 3805
(f) Financial assets
(i) Investments 6 1,750.85 1,725.71
{1} Loans 8 121 269
(iii) Other financial assets 9 3301 il3
() Nou-current tax assets (net) 10 90.20 130,83
{h} Deferred tax assets (net) 21 9387 61.66
(i} Other non-current assets 11 24,24 19,00
Total non-current assets 3,855.79 3,761,07
(2) Current assets
{a) Inventories 12 2.636.56 243213
(b} Financial assets
(1) Investments ] 15644 188.38
(ii) Trade receivables 7 2,434 .50 1,913.34
(ii1) Cash and cash equivalents 13 11.10 2350
{iv) Loans 8 1.49 148
(v) Other financial assets 9 287.55 66.84
{c) (Other current assets 11 233.39 204.38
Total current assets 5.504.03 4,830.55
Total Assets 9.659.82 8.551.62
EQUITY AND LIABILITTES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 19.49 19.49
(b} Other equity 15 501945 5,640.50
Total Equity 5,638.94 5,659.99
Liabilities
(1) Non - current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 5 335
(i1} Lease lizbilities 17 14578 145.52
{iif) Other financial liabilities 1% 22.60 20.13
{b) Provisions 19 63.02 3227
(¢) Other non-curreni lrabilities 21 .08 0.08
Total non-current liabilitics 231.46 201.35
(2) Current lizbilities
(a) Financial Kabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 1,411.08 875.83
(i1} Lease liabilities 17 32.08 2403
(iii) Trade payables 22
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 241,22 167.95
- total o_utstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small 1.704.69 1.391.78
enterprises
(1w} Other financial lighilities 12 142,11 138,948
{b) Other current liahilities 21 132.70 120.90
(c) Provisions 19 35.54 10.81
Total current liabilities 3.789.42 2,730.28
Total equity and lizbilities 9,659.82 8,591.62
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 1-53
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For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Napino Autg And Electronics Limited
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013 \
Vo - Vot 8}
Tarun Gupta Vipin Raheja Vaibhav Raheja
Partner {Chairman & Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership No: 507892 DIN: ﬂOOJ]QM DIN; 00053672
N R WU TS\
Rajat.befn Inderneck-Sethi— =
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place; Gurugram
Date: 29 September 2023
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NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN -

U34300HR1931PLCO31470

Standalone Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
{Amownt in T mrlfions, uniess otherwise stated)

Year endcd

Year ended

L Notes 35 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
INCOME
1 Revenue from operations 23 10,369 66 8,147 62
[l Other income 24 120.79 77.64
ITT Tetal income (I + I1) 10,490.45 §,225.26
1V EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 25 7.965.01 6,025.91
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 26 4.93 64.35
Employee benefits expense 27 1,269.25 1,145.84
Finance costs 28 9426 46.92
Depreciation and amorlisation expense 29 332.63 404.74
Other expenses 30 699.41 665.60
Total 10.365.49 8.353.36
V¥V Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and tax (II-1V) 124.96 (128.10%
Exceptional iterms 31 {169.66) {83.47)
Loss before tax (44.70) {211.57)
¥I Tax expense: 20
Income tax
Current tax - 4 88
Tax for earlier years 5.54 5.32
Deferred tax {credit) {30.47) {68.33)
¥I1 Loss for the year (V-VI) (19.77% (153.44)
VII Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not to be reclassified to statement of profit or loss
{i) Fair vaiue gain on equity investments through other comprehensive income 32 1.97 0.63
(i} Re-measurcment (loss) / gain on defined benefit plans 32 (4.99 9.20
Income tax effect 32 1.74 (3.22)
Taotal other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (1.28) 6.61
IX Total comprehensive income comprising of (loss) for the year and other comprehensive {loss) / (21.05) {146.83}
income for the year (¥II + VIII)
Earnings per equity share (of Rs. 10 each) in Rs.
Basic and diluted 33 2.0%) {15.74)
1-53
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Chartered Accountants
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Place:
Datc: 29 Septemnber 2023
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NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HR1991PL.C031470
Standalone Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in T millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Loss before fax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments

Profit on sale of mutual fund

Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Provision for diminution of investment

Amortisation of government grant

Dividend income

Interest income

Interest expense

Bad debts/advances written off

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for movement in working capital changes
Trade receivables

Other financial assets

Inventories

Other assets

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Other liabilities

Provisions

Cash flow used in operations

Refunds (Direct taxes paid} (net)

Net cash flow used in operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (including capital work-in-progress,

intangible assets under development, capital advances and capital creditors)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of investments during the year

Sale of investments during the year

Investment in fixed deposits during the year

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Current borrowings (net)

Non current borrowings repaid during the year
Principal repayment of lease liabilities

Interest paid

Net cash flow generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(44.70) (211.59)
332.63 404.74
(0.82) (0.79)
(0.70) -
(23.23) (6.49)
- 18.38
{4.61) {0.05)
(0.40) {0.32)
{(17.09) (12.50)
94.26 46.92
- 33.05
335.34 271.35
(520.66) {211.92)
(225.44) 40.66
(204.43) 7.29
(25.62) 63.35
476.20 (315.38)
(5.11} 34.37
16.38 56.27
50.49 14.08
(102.85) (39.92)
35.09 {56.42)
(67.76) (96.34)
(381.72) (152.19)
17.35 1.09
{11.01) (143.22)
0.70 -
(0.54) (1.85)
17.13 12.41
0.40 .32
(357.69) (283.44)
532.55 457.20
{0.65) (0.64)
(38.89) (31.20)
(79.96) (35.39)
413.05 389.97
(12.40) 10.19
23.50 13.31
11.10 23.50




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HR1991PLC031470

Standalone Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Amount in T millions, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of cash flow (cont'd)

Components of cash and cash equivalents As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash in hand 0.34 0.30
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts 10.76 13.20
- Fixed deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less - 10.00
Total cash and cash equivalents (note no 13) 11.10 23.50

Notes:
The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows".

Note 2: Disclosures as required in terms of Amendment to Ind AS 7 'Statement of cash flows' related to the change in financial liabilities
arising from financing activity is as below:

Particulars Current Nom-current Lease liabilities Total
borrowings borrowings*
Net debt as on 1 April 2021 417.98 4.60 118.36 340.94
Cash flows
Proceeds (net) 457.20 - - 45720
Interest expense - 0.04 - 0.04
Repayments - (0.64) (30.05) (30.69)
Non cash changes - - -
New leases - - 69.71 69.71
Termination of lease 2 5 - s
Interest on lease liability - - 11.53 11.53
Balance as on 31 March 2022 / 01 April 2022 875.18 4.00 169.55 1,048.73
Cash flows
Proceeds (net) 532.55 - ~ 532,55
Interest expense - 0.04 - 0.04
Repayments - (0.65) (38.03) (38.68)
Non cash changes
New leases - - 32.03 32.03
Termination of lease = - - -
Interest on lease liability - E 14.30 14.30
Balance as on 31 March 2023 1,407.77 3.31 177.85 1,588.93

* Includes current maturities of non-current borrowings included under current borrowings per amendment in Schedule III vide Notification
dated 24 March 2021 and excludes interest.

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 1-53
This is the standalone statement of cash flow referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Napino Auto And Electronics Limited
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

— ot
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Tarun Gupta Vipin Raheja Vaibhav Raheja
Partner Chairman & Managing Director  Joint Managing Director
Membership No: 507892 ) DIN: 00032931 DIN: 00053672
PR \
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RajatJain Inderneel Sethi
Place; Gurugram Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No: ACS 15263
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NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HR1991PLC031470
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March

2023

1.

2.1

2.2

Company overview

Napino Aute and Clectronics Limited is a limited Company domiciled in India. Napino Auto and Electronics
Limited is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act 1956, applicable in India and its registered
office is located at Gurgaon.

The Company is manufacturer of electronic products for various industries. The Company delivers products
of high quality and aims at ensuring customer satisfaction.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements (“financial statements™) of the Company have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to

time).

The standalone financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and amortised
costs basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The standalone financial stateraents of the Company are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also its
functional currency and all amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to
the nearest two decimals in millions as per the requirement of Schedule IIT to the Act, unless otherwise stated.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria as set out in the Division [ of Schedule (11 to the Companies Acl, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current or
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Company has prepared the standalone financial statements on the basis that 1t will continue to operate as
a going concern.

The standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approved and
authorised for issue by Board of Directors in their meeting held on 29 September 2023,

The standalone financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and
measurement bases summarised below. These accounting policies have been used throughout all periods

presented in the siandalone financial statements.

Standards issued but not yet cffective

In March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2023 which amended certain [nd AS as explained below:

Statements is expected to be ms1gn1ﬁcant basis the prellmmary evaluation.




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HR1991PLC031470
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March

2023

b) Ind AS § — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors — the amendment added
definition of accounting estimate and clarifies what is accounting estimate and treatment of change in the
accounting estimate and accounting policy. Theie is no impact of the amendment on the Financial Statements
basis the preliminary evaluation.

¢) Ind AS 12— Income taxes — the definition of deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability is amended to apply
initial recognition exception on assets and liabilities that does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. There is no impact of the amendment on the Financial Statements basis the preliminary
evaluation.

The above amendments are effective from annual periods beginning ou or after 01 April 2023.

2.3 Use of judgment, estimates and assum ptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and other comprehensive income {OCI) that are reported and disclosed in
the financial statements and accompanying notes. Accounting estimates could change from period to period.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions

These estimates and judgment are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events, historical
experience, actions that the Company may undertake in the future and on various other estimates and
judgments that ave believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur, The judgements and key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources for estimating
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

a) Recognition of deferred tax assets - The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on
an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be

utilised.

b) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

¢) Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties
in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of Company’s

assets.

d) Provisions and contingent liabilities — The Company is the subject of legal proceedings and tax issues

and certain other experts on matters related to litigation and taxes. The Company accrues g3
is determined that an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reason }5’)!
the circumstances, when the outcome is not probable, cormpany accounts for that as a contingg

estimated.
iability




NAFINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED
CIN - U34300HR1991PLC031470
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March

2023

¢} Employee benefits — Management’s estimate of the employee benefits is based on a number of critical
underlying assumptions such as standard ratcs of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation ol future
salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the employee benefits amount and
the annual defined benefit expenses.

f) Lease-estimating the incremental borrowing rate — The Company cannot readily determine the interest
rate implicit in the leass, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR)} to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR {s the rate of interest thal the Company would pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lcase. The Company estimates the 1BR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises the purchase price
and any attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discount
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
attributable to such subsequent cost associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation and useful lives)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written down valie method. The following

useful life of assets has been taken by the Company:

Asset class Useful Lives
Buildings 30 years
Plant and equipments 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Vehicles 8/10 years
Office equipments 5 years
Computers 3/6 years

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Where, during any financial year, any addition has been made to any asset, or where any asset has been sold,
discarded, demolished or destroyed, or significant components replaced; depreciation on such assets is
calculated on a pro rata basis as individual assets with specific useful life from the month of such addition oz,
as the case may be, up to the month on which such asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed

or replaced.

such date are disclosed under ‘capital work-in-progress’.




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED
CIN - U34300HR1991PLC031470
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March

2023

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its usc or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

2.5 Intangiblc assets

Recognition and inifial measurement
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumnulated impairment losses, if

any.

Subsequent measurement (amortisation)

All intangible assets are accounted for using the cost model whereby capitalised costs are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated usefirl lives. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset
is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other
economic factors {such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level of
maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The cost thereof is amortised over a period of 3-5 years. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for intangible assets are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes In accounting

estimates.
Revenue expenditure on research is recognised as expense in the year in which it is incurred and are included
with the respective nature of account heads in the standalone statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the standalone statement of

profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets under development
Intangible assets which are under development stage and are not ready for intended use are disclosed as

Intangible assets under development.
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditures on an individual project are recognised

as an Intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate:

*  The technical feasibility of completing the infangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or
sale.

* Its intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset

»  How the asset will generate future economic benefits.

»  The availability of resources to complete the asset

«  The ability to measure rcliably the expenditure during development

part of carrying value of another asset.

During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March

2023

2.6 Financial Instruments

A Financial instrument are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried
at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value.

If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the
Company accounts for that instrameont at that datc as follows:

1) at the measuremenl basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input} or based on a valuation technique that uses only
data from observable markets. The Company recognises the differcnce between the fair value at initial
recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss.

2) in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the difference between
the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Company recognises
that deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including
time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below,

Non-derivative finanecial assets: -
Classification and subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the following categories upon

initial recognition:

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost — a financial instrument is measured at amortised cost if both the
following conditions are met:
s The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and
s Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(il) Financial assets at fair value - Investments in equity instruments other than above — All equity
investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair valie. Equity instraments which are held for trading
are classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company
decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair
value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument ag at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI te Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment, However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity, Dividends on such investments are recognised in
profit or loss uniess the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the invesiment.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all chang
recognised in the P&L.
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De-recognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assct oxpire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and docs not
retain control of the financial asset. If the Company enters into transactions whercby it transfers assets
recognised on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Non-Derivative financial liability: -

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss
Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, the financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method (EIR).

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are integral part of the EIR. The effect of EIR amortisation is included as finance cost in the statement of

profit and loss.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in Statement of Profit

and Loss.

Offsetting of financizal instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity investments

All other equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument
basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides ta slassify an equity instmment an at FYTOOCT, then all fair vale changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI
to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the P&L.
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De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The respective Company has transferred their rights to receive cash flows from the asset or have assumed
the obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through’ arrangement; and

¢ Either the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but have transferred control of the

asset.
2.7 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the asswmptions that market participanis would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial results are categorized
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whele) at the end of
each reporting period or each case,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

2.8 Investment in snbsidiaries, joint venture and associate

An investor, regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee), shall determine whether

returns through its power over the investee,
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Thus, an investor controls an investee if and only if the investor has all the following:

a) power over the investee;

b) exposure, or rights, to variable returms from its involvement with the investee; and

¢) the ability to use its power over the investec to affect the amount of the investor’s retumns.

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture at cost in
accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separale FFinancial Statements’.

Investments carried at cost are tested annually for impairment as per requirements of Ind AS 36 - Impairment

of Assets.
2.9 Impairment of Financial Assets

All financial assets except for those al FVTPL are subject to review for impalrment at least at each reporting
date to identify whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets Is
impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for cach category of financial assets,

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement
and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets carried at amortised cost.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating
the cash flows, the Company is required to consider —

»  All contractual terms of the financial assets {including prepayment and extension) over the expected life
of the assets.

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integrai to the contractual

terms.

Trade receivables

The Company assesses mpairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) medel for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss, the calculation of which is based on historical data, on the financial assets
that are trade receivables or contract revenue receivables and all lease receivables.

The Company writes off trade receivables after it is established beyond doubt that the account is
uncoliectible. Financial assets that are written-off are still subject to enforcement activity by the Company.

Other financial assets
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If the credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the
expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default ocourring on the financial
asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reascnable and supportable information, that is
available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant mcreases in credit risk since initial
recognition, The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financizal asset has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purposes, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
independent cash inflows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are testedSfidividually
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. ¢
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At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication based on infernal/external
factors, that an asset may be Impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. 1f such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which the assst belongs is less thap its camying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its
recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Tf, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed which is the higher of {air value less costs of disposal and
value-in-use and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated
historical cost, Impairment losses previously recognised are reversed in the statement of profit and loss. The
increased carrying amount of assel attributable to reversal of an impairment loss shall not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined {net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

To determine value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit
and determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data
used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Company’s latest approved budget, adjusted
as necessary to exclude the effects of future re-organisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are
determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect current market assessment of the time value
of money and asset-specific risk factors.

2,11 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a
reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its present value using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
When provisicns are discounted, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

+ Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

» Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets
Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when inflow of economic benefits is probable, related asset

is disclosed.

2.12 Operating expenses

Operating expenses are recognised in the standalone statement of profit or loss upon utilisation of the service
or as incurred.

2.13 Foreign currency transactions and translations

i. Initial recognition - The Company's standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Riap
which is also the Company's functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorde /
recognition in the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transa
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fi. Measurement at the halance sheet date - Foreign currency monctary items of the Company,
outstanding at the balance sheet date are restated at the year-end rates. Non-monetary items which are carried
at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency arc reported using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction, Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined,

iii. Treatment of exchange difference - Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or
on reporting at each balance sheet date of the Company’s monetary items at the closing rate are recognised
as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

2.14 Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted
for events including a bonus issue if any.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity sharcholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.15 Taxes

Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected te be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted

or substantively enacted in India, at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable
profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred
tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised.

The Company’s ability to recover the deferred tax assets is assessed by the management at the close of each
financial year which depends upon the forecasts of the future results and taxable profits that Company expects
to eam within the peried by which such brought forward losses may be adjusted against the taxable profits
as governed by the Income-tax Act, 1962. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed g
each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no longer prob
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised s
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow/firc T
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying a: i
liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset deferred tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle deferred tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultanecusly.

2.16 Employee benefits

(i) Employee beneflt in the form of provident fimd, employec state insurance scheme and labour welfare scheme
is a defined contribution scheme. The Cempany has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
provident fund. The Company recognize contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related service.

(if} The Company operates a defined benefit plan in India, viz., gratuity. The cost of providing benefit under this
plan is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end carried out using the projected unit
cost method.

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gain and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding ameunt
recognized in the net interest on the defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in met Interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur, Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

(iii) Salaries, wages, accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated
as short term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

(iv) The Company treats the accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as other
long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such other long term compensated absences are
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end carried out using the projected unit cost
method, Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gain and losses are recognized in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur, Re-
measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or Joss on the earlier of:
s The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
» The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss:

s Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and
nan-routine settlements; and

s Net interest expense or income

2.17 Cash Flow Statement

for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at bank and on hand and bank ;
where original maturity is three months or less.
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2.18 Inventorics

Inventories include raw material, stores and spares, finished goods and work in progress.
[nventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Cost in respect of various items of

inventory is computed as under

» Raw materials and components are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. However, these items
are considered to be realisable at cost if the finished products, in which they will be used, are expected to be
sold at or above cost. The cost includes direct expenses and is determined on the basis of weighted average
method. Cost of raw materials and packing materials is computed on weighted average basis.

*  Work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
cverheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on

weighted average.

* Finished goods: includes the cost of direct materials, an appropriate share of fixed and variable production
overheads as applicable and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

» Stores and spares: at cost or net realisable value, whichever is iess. Cost is computed on weighted average
basis. Scrap/non-moving goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling
expenses. Provision for expired stock and slow-moving inventory, if required is made based on
management’s best estimates of net realisable value of such inventories.

2.19 Revenue from contracts with customers

The five-step model of Ind AS 115 - 'Revenue from Contracts from Customers' is used to determine whether
revenue should be recognised at a point in time or over time, and at what amount is as below:

= Step 1. Tdentify the contract with the customer

» Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

+ Step 3: Determine the transaction price

* Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations

* Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services.

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the
customer which ceincides with the performance obligation under the contract with the customer.

- Revenue from services is recognized in accordance with the terms of contract when the services are

rendered and the related costs are incurred.
- Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discoun

price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer.
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2.20 Other income

Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, exchange gam/less on translation of other assets and
liabilities.

Interest

Interest income is recognised as and when due on the time proportion basis by using effective interest method.
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
assets. Interest income is included under the head "other income" in the consolidated statement of profit and

loss.

2.21 Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset.

2.22 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Berrowing cost
also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.23 Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Comparny assesses
whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset {if} the Company has substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iil) the Company has the right
to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
norresprmding lease liahility for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, exnept for lrases with a term
of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases, For these short-term and low value Jeases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the legs
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will b

exercised.
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The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease Liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and

mmpairment losses, if any.
The Company as a lessor
Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of

the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease, All other leases are classified as operating leases.

2.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The Company operates in a single segment of production of electronic parts and
relevant disclosure requirements as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments” have been disclosed by the
Company under note no 40.

The board of directors of the Company has been identified as being the chief operating decision maker by
the management of the Company.

2.25 Provision for warranties

The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These estimates are
established using historical information on the nature, frequency, average cost of warranty claims and
management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions on product failures.
The timing of cutflows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise being typically twe to five years.

2,26 Amended Accounting Standards (fnd AS) and interpretations effective during the year

@

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Ind AS 103 Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual
Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes
do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The amendment did not have any material impact
on standalone financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 16 Proceeds before intended use
The amendment specify that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use.
The amendment did not have any material impact on standalone financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 37 Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

on standalone financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 109 Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent” test of In
assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. The amendment did not have any material
standalone financial statements of the Company.
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NAPING AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED
CIN - U34300HRISPIFLCO31470

Summary of sienificant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Anrannt in T millions, unicss etherwise siaied)

4 [Intangibles and Intangible agsets under development {cont'd}

Intangible assets under develapment as at 31 March 2023 amounting to Rs 127 43 millions (31 March 2022: Ks 38 05 millions) comprises of expenditure on Livense Yees, Soliware and Tuclinical

Enowhow pertaining to varous prajects

The table below analyse the intangible assels under development ageing:

31 March 2023

Amount in intangible onder development for a period of

Particolars o
L.ess than 1 vear 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 5 ycars __Taral
Tntangihle assets under development™ 91,12 - 36.31 127,43
91.12 - 3631 - 12743
31 March 2022 S
Parficolars Amount in intangible under develog t for a period of
1.e55 than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears Muare than 3 years Tatal
[ntangible assets under development* 14 6.3 = = 38.05
1.74 36,351 = 805

*There are no such prajects under intanpible under development whose completion is overdus ar has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan as of 37 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

5 Right-of-ose assels

Particulars Right of Use Assets- | Right of Lise Assets- Total
Land Building

Balance as at 01 April 2021 57.31 138.54 195.85
Additions - T0.86 70.86
Dhisposals - - -
Balaoce as at 3L March 2022/ 01 April 2022 57.31 209.40 266,71
Additions - 32.89 31.89
Disposals - - ;
Balance as at 31 March 2023 5731 242,30 299,60
Accomulated amortisation
Balance as at 01 April 2021 1.34 27.64 28.99
Charge for the year 0,65 24.86 25.52
Reversal of disposal - - N
Balance as at 31 March 2022/ 01 April 2022 2400 5151 34.51
Charge for the year (.66 ap.72 31.38
Reversal of disposal - - =
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2.65 83.23 85.89
Net black
As at3] March 2022 55.31 156,59 212.20
As at31 March 2023 54,66 159.07 213,71
The movement in lease liablities is as tollows:

As at Asat
Eantienly 31 March 2023 3 March 2022
Balance at the beginning 16955 118 38
Addition duning the year 32.03 68971
Finance costs acerued during the year 14.30 11.53
Fayment of lease ligbilities 38.03 005
Balance al the cnd 177.585 169.55

Ag at Asat

Amouont recopnised in statement of profit aod loss during the year on account of Ind AS 116

Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note ne 28)
Dipreiation of Right of Use assets {refer note no 29)
Shon term and low valug lease payments (refer tote no 307

The following is the bresk-up of current and non-current [ease liabilities

Particolars

Current lease labilities
Mon-cwtent lease liabilities

Total

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

14.530 11.53

313% 25,52

1299 803

58.67 45.14

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
32,08 24,03

145,78 145 52

177.85 169.55




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITEDR

CIN - U34300HRIS21PLCO31470

Summary of siznificant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
fdrtonni in T miillions, unless oifterwise stated)

6

Investments

As at
31 March 2023

Asat
31 March 2022

Non-current

Investment in equity instrument, Unquated

Lovestments in subsidiaries {measured af cost)

a. Investment in equity instruments of sobsidiaries

36,000,000 (31 March 2022 56,000,000} equity share of Bs. 10 each fully pald up in MNapine Control Systems
Private Limited

10,006 (31 March 2022 10,000) equaty share of Bs, 10 each fully paid up in Naping Deming Mecharronics Private
Limited

5,300,000 (31 March 2022: 6,300,000) equity share of Bs. |0 each fully paid up in Napino Digital Solutions Private
Limited

b. Investment in equity instruments of associates {measored at amortised cost)

501,700 (31 March 2022: 501,700) equity shares of Rs, 2 each fully paid up in VVDN Teclmologies Private Limited

c. Investment in equity instruments of Joint ventores (measured at amortized cost)

32,300,000 (31 March 2022: 32 500,000) equity share of Rs, 10 each fully paid ep in Napino Continental Wehicle
Electronies Private Limited

d. Others {measured at fair valuc through profit or loss)

3 (31 March 2022: 5) equity shares of 3 0.0001 each fully paid up in Noviz me #

5,241 {31 March 2022 5,241} equity shares of R 1 each fully paid up in Tsecond Generabon Technology Private
Limited

5 (31 March 2022 5) equity shares of § 0.0001 each fully paid up in Sakwu Corporagtion (Formerly koown as
Karacel, me)

250 {31 MWarch 2022: 250 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid np in VirmalForest Private Limited

Less: Provision for diminution in the value of investment

# Rownded off

Un-Quated preference shares

a. Investment in preference shares of subsidiary

At amortised cost

1,820,000 {31 March 2022: 1,820,000} 7.5% non cunulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

ap of Napino Centrol Systems Private Limited

At FVTIPL
Deemed investments *

*In the Financial year 2019-20, Company had invested in 7.3% pon cumulative redeemable preference shares of
Mapiro Control Systems Private Limited amounting to Bs. 182.00 millions. The Company has recognised tnvestment
at far value cosiderng dividend i3 diserctionary and non-cumulative I nature and the differential is recognised as
deemed mvesiment,

b. Investment in preference share of associates (measured at amortised cost)
2,015,342 {31 March 2022: 2,013,342} preference shares of Rs. 2 each fully paid up of ¥ VN Technologes Privale

Lirnited

c. Others (measured at fair value through profit or loss)

19,668 (31 March 2022: 19,668} Series ‘A’ preferred stock of $0.00] each in Bueviz Ing,

149,026 (31 March 2022; 149 026} Series 'A’ preferred stock of $0 001 each in Sakuu Corporation (Formerly known
as Karacel, Inc)

2,122 (31 March 2022 2,122) Preference shares of R, 100 gach fully paid up of VirtualForest Private Limited

Legs: Prowvision for diminution in the value of investment

Tatal

Appregate arnounl of unguoted investments

Apprepate amount of impaimment in the value of investments TANNDIA
L lal O

Refer Note 42 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and/ass,

560.00 560.00
0.10 0.10
£3.00 63.00
623.10 623.10
11838 118.38
325.00 325.00
0.00 0.00
18.38 18.33
0.00 0.00
577 527
(18.38) (18.38)
5.77 517
1,072.25 1,07L.75
158,82 147.74
5520 55.20
390.01 35001
1351 13.51
1628 16.28
5829 4473
(13.513 (13.51)
74.57 61.01
1,750.85 1,725.71
1,750.85 1,725,71
(31.89) (31.89)




NAPING AUTO AND ELECTRONLCS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HR1991PLC031470

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
fAmount in T millions, unless otherwise siatecd)

Current
As at As af
31 March 2423 31 March 2622
{i) Investment at amortised cost:
Boneds
9,000 (31 March 2022: 9.000) bonds of of Rs. 1,122 64/- each of Indian Railway Finance Corporation Lirmtted 9.95 10.02
Total (A)
{ii) Investments at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income*:
Quoted equity shares
23,600 (31 March 2022: 23 600) equity shares af Rz 10/- each fully paid-up of Petronet LING 5440 457
400 (31 March 2022: 400} equity shares of Es. 10/~ each paid vp shares of PT(C India Limited 0.03 003
600 (31 March 2022: 500 equity shares of Rs.5/- each paid up shares of Biocon Limited 0.12 020
8,800 (31 Warch 2022: 8,800 equity shares of 2/- each paid up shares of ICICT Bank Limited 7.72 6.43
5,688 (31 March 2022 5,688) equily shares of 5/- cach paid up shares of ONGC Limited 0.86 .93
Total (B) 14,13 12.16
(i) Tnvestment in Mutuzl Fund (quuted} measured at fair value through profit or loss
3,103,354 (31 March 2022: 3,103,354) units of ICICI Prudential Banking & FSU Debt Fund £5.49 8111
907,331 (31 March 2022: 907,331) units of ICICI Prudential Short Term Fund 45.85 43,36
1,389,633 (31 March 2022: 1,389,633} units of SBI Dynamic Bond Fund 4163 39.46
7,210 (31 March 2022; 7,210) wnits of TCTCT Prudential Liquid Fund 238 2.26
338 (31 March 2022: 338) units of HSBC Banking and PSU Debt Fund - Regular Growth (Fommerly lmown as L and 0.01 0.01
T Banking and PSU Debt Fund)
Total (C) 17536 166,20
Total (A+ B +C) 199.44 188.38

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 199 44 18838

Aggrepate amount of impairment in the value of investments

Refer Note 42 for diselosure of fair value in respect of financial assets meagured at amortised cost and fair valus respectively.
*Comparny has chosen to account for these investments at fair value throuph other comprehensive income.

{This space has been intentionally left Mank)




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HRI19%1PLC031470
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in T millions, unless otherwise stated)

7 Trade receivables oA Dya
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Tradc reecivables - considered good {unsecured) 2,434.50 1,913.84

Trade receivables - credit impaired 2710 E
2,461.60 1,913.84

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (27.10) -
Total 2,434.50 1,913.84
645.55 484.57

7.1 Dues from related parly {refer note 39)

7.2 Refer note 49 for information on trade receivables pledged as security by the Company
7.3 Refer note 42 for disclosure of fair valuc in respect of financial asscts measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses
respectively. All amounts are short term. The net carrying value of trade rcecivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

7.4 Refer note 46a for ageing of trade receivables

8 Loans As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{Unsecured, considered good)
Non-current
Advances to employees 1.21 2.69
Current
Advances to employees 1.49 1.48
2.69 4.18

Total

Refer note 42 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses
respectively.

. As at Asat
9 Other financial assets 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Non-current
Bank deposits {due to mature after 12 months from the reporting datc)* 10.29 9.76
Security deposits 21.72 21.55
38.01 31.31
Current
Unbilled revenue 277.80 62.64
Security deposits E 0.28
Dty drawback receivable 1.56 2.01
Others 8.18 1.91
287.55 66.84

*pledied with government authorities and others (refer note 49 )
Refer note 42 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial asssts measured at amortised cost and asscssment of expected credit losses

respectively.
10 Non current tax assets (net) a1 M;t'sc?ltz 023 31 M::c?ltz 022
Non-current
Advance income -tax {net of provision) m 90.20 130.83
@ N, 99.20 130.83

£
) o7
oS T
(3] ‘.‘L:.L'_\J-"




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HR1991PLC031470
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in T milfions, unless otherwise stated)

11

12

13

QOther assets

Non-corrent
Capital advances
Prepaid expenses

Current

Advance to suppliers

Prepaid expenses

Advance to employees

Balance with statutory authorities

Inventories

(refer note 2.18 on inventories)
Raw materials and components
on hand
in transit
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
on hand
in transit
Stores & spares
Total

Refer note 49 for information on inventories pledged as security by the Company

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with scheduled banks:
- On current accounts

- On deposit accounis with original maturity upto 3 months

Cash in hand
Total

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

16,55 8.02
7.69 11.07
24.24 19.09
58.78 38.17
36.53 3827
(.16 0.32
137.93 126.62
233.39 204.38

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

1,916.96 1,804 .83
272.82 174.32

137.93 129,96

189.29 238.24

112.67 76.61

6.89 3.18

2,636.56 2,432.13

As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

10.76 13.20
- 10.00
0.34 0.30
11.10 23.50

Refer note 42 for disclosure of fair value in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and assessment of expected credit losses

respectively.




NAPINCG AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HR1991 PLCO31470
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in T millions, unless athervise stated)

As at

Particulars
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

14 Equity share capital

Authorised
30,00.000 (31 March 2022: 30,000,000} equity shares of Rs 10 cach 30.00 30.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
19,49,392 (31 March 2022: 19,49,392) Fquity sharcs of Rs. 10 each 19 49 19.49

19.4% 19.49

14.1 Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of {he reporting period:
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares Amount Na. of sharcs Amount

At the beginning of the vear 1,949,392 19.49 1,949,392 19.49
Add: Shares issued during the year - 2 - =
Closing balance 1,949,392 19.49 1,949,392 19.49

14.2 Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shaves having par value of Rs.10 per share. Tach holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupecs. In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of cquity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the Company, after distribulion of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

14.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of shareholder Asat 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding

Mr. Vipin Raheja# 511,011 26.21% 511,011 26.21%
Mrs. Vandana Raheja# 506,112 25.96% 506,112 25.96%
Mr. Navin Raheja# 194,600 9.98% 194,600 9.98%
Ms, Vani Raheja# 136,760 7.02% 136,760 7.02%
Mr. Vaibhav Rahejat 136,765 7.02% 136,765 7.02%
M/s Shindengen Electric Manufacturing Co. Ltd. {Reier Nole - 533 440,000 22.57% 440,000 22.57%

1,925,248 98.76% 1,925,248 98.76%

# Promoters of the Company. There has been no change during the year in the munmber of shares held by them from the preceding year

Nates:

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding bencficial interest,

the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

14.4 No shares have been issued as bonus shares or issued for consideration other than cash or bought back during the period of five years immediately preceding the

reporting date. Company has issued bonus sharcs subsequent o the reporting date. Refer Nole 33 for details,

14.5 No shares have been reserved for issue under options.

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of significant aceounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

fAmount fn T miflions, unless otherwise stated)

15

(2)

(b)

(c)

(9

Particulars As at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Other equity
Securities premium
Balance at the heginning/end of the vear 69.50 69.50
General reserve
Balance at the beginning/end of the year 688.50 648.50
Retained earnings
Balance as per last financial stalemenis 4,871.46 501892
Add; Loss for the year {19.77) (153.44}
Add: Other comprehensive income relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans {net) {3.25) ] 3.98
Balance as at end of the year 4,848.44 4,871.46
Other comprehensive income
Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
Balance as per last financial statements 11.04 10.41
Add: Movement for the year 1.97 0.63
Balance as at end of the year 13.m 11.04

Total 5,619,453 5,640.50

Nature and purpose of reserves:
Securities premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on i{ssue of shares. The reserve can be wtilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus

shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

General reserve

General reserve 1s created from time to time by way of ransfer of profits from relamed earnings for appropriation purposes. General reserve is created by transfer
{rom one componcnt of cquity to ancther and is not an item of other comprehensive income,

Retained carnings
Retained earnings arc the profits that the Company has earned (ill daie and not distributed. Retained earning is a free reserve available to the company, It includes

other comprehensive income representing the actuarial gain/logs arising on account of defined benefit plan.

Equity instrements designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
The Company has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity instruments in other comprehensive income. These changes are
accumulated within FVOCI equity nvestments reserve within equity. The Company transfors amounts from this rescrve to retained eamings when the relevant

equity securities are derecognised.

{This space has been fntentionally left blank)




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HR1291PLC031470

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amount in T millions, unless otherwise stated)
16 Borrowings

Non-current (secured)
Term loan from financial institution

Current (secured)
Cash credit with banks

Working capital [oan repayable on demand
Current maturities of non-current horrowings

Total

Terms of borrowings

31 March 2023

Asat

31 March 2922

Asat

- 3.35
15777 175,18
1,250.00 700.00
331 .65
1,411.08 875.83
141108 §79.17

Loan outstanding

Repayment terms

Type of loan As at As at Rate of interest Security guarantee
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Term loan from fmancial institution 331 3,99 10.99% Secured against first charge| The loan is ropayable in
(secured) (10.99% Previous |on vehicle under finance 48 monihly eqgual
year) instalments of Rs. 0.90
lalchs each,
Working capital facility {secured) 1,250.00 700.00 4,65 - 8.68% Secured against pari passu|l Repayable on demand
{458 -6.15% charge on inveniories and
Previous year) book debts of the Company
Cash credit with banks (secured) 157.77 175.18 5.75 - 13.00% Secured against pari passu| Repayable on demand
(7.50 - 7.80% charge on inventories and
Previous year) book debts of the Company
1,411.08 879.17

Notes:

(i) The abovc loans have been utilised as per the purpose for these loans were sanctioned.

{ii) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of interest during the current financial year, Further, there have been no default in repayment of any inieresi-bearing

loans and borrowing in the current year,

(iii) Refer note 42 for disclosure of fair values in respect of financial liabilities measured at fair value and amortised cosl.
{iv) The Company is required to comply with certain debt covenants as mentioned in the loan agreement for working capital loans aud cash credit facilities, faiture of
which malkes the loan to be repaid on demand at the discrction of the bank, There has been no breach in covenants during the vear.

{¥) Refer note 49 for information on assets pledged as security by the Company

17 Lease liabilities

Non-current
Lease liabililies (refer nole 5 and 35 for details)

Current
Lease hiabilities {refer nole 5 and 35 for details)

{This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

145.78

32.08

145,52

24.03
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{dmount in T milfions, unless otherwise stated)

18 Other financial liablities

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
Nan- current
Employee related payables

Current
Capital creditors
Security deposits

Employee related payables
Other payables

Total

19 Provisions

Non- current

Compensated absences (refer note 36 for details)
Warranty obligations {refer note 48 for details)

Current
Gratuity (refer note 36 for details)

Compensated absences (refer note 36 for details)
Warranty obligations (refer note 48 for details)

Others

Total

{This space has been intentionally left biank)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

22,60 20.13
39.88 2917
1.00 0.95
99.51 107.56
1.72 1.30
142.11 138.98
164.71 159.11
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

57.01 29.29
6.01 2.98
63.02 32.27
8.61 6.94
3.86 1.81
316 2.06

19.92 &
35.54 10.81
98.56 43.08




NAPINOG AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED
CIN - U34300HR1991PLC031470
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explasatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
{dmonnt in T millions, unless otherwise stated)
20 Deferred tax

The major component of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2023:

Statement of profit and loss:

Asg at 31 March

As at 31 March

2023 2022
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge - 4 88
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year 5.54 5.32
Deferred tax:
Relating to erigination and reversal of temporary differences {30.47) (68.33)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss {24.93) (58.13)

Other Comprehensive Income (QOCI)
Deferred tax relating to iterns in OCT in the year:

As at 31 March

As at 31 March

2023 2022
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 1.74 3.22)
Income tax recognised in OCI 1.74 (3.22)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate
As at 31 March As at 31 March
2023 2022
Acecoonting profit before income tax (44.71) {211.57)
At India's statutory income tax rate of 34.944% (31 March 2022; 34,944%%) {15.62) (73.93)
Non-deduciible expenses for tax purposes:
Donation and C5R expenditures 092 3135
Expenses disallowed 0.18 6.50
Deduction on rental income 0.84 073
Others {12.99 843
At the effective income tax rate 0f34,944% (26.67) (54.91)
Tax expense reported in the Statement of total comprehensive (26.67) (54.51)
income
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax relates to the following: Balance sheet
As at 31 March Asg at 31 March
2023 2022
Difference in book value and tax base of Property, plant and equipment (including intangibles) 46.96 43.08
Fair valvation of investments {12.20) {3131)
Miscellaneous expenditure 2227 27.42
Recognition of right of uge assets and lease liability (12.53) (14.90)
Provisions on emiployee benefits 2428 13.29
Provisions on other payables 6.96 -
Provisions on obsolete inventory 729 22.74
Provisions on trade receivables 947 -
Security deposits 1.38 1.34
03.87 61.66

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets (net):
As at 31 March

As at 31 March

2023 2022
Opening balance G166 {3.45)
Tax income/{expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 3047 £8.33
Tax income/{expense) during the period recognised in OCI 1.74 3.22)
G1.66

Closing balance of deferred tax assets (Net}y
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21

22

(a)

As at

Other liablities 31 March 2023

As at
3 March 2022

Non-current

Deferred government grant 0.06 0.08

Current

Advance from customers 106.86 96.95

Deferred government grant 0.02 0.03

Statuory dues 25.81 23.90
132.70 120.90

As at

Trade payables 31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Trade payables dues of micro enterprises and small enterpriscs * 241.22 167.95
Trade payables dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.794.69 1,391.78
Total 2,035.91 1,559.73

95.62 41.85

Dues to related parties (refer note 39)
For explanation on the Company's credit risk management process, refer to Note 44

* The amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006"
("MSMED") has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with Company. The

disclosures relating to the micro, small and medium enterprises are as under-

As at

Particulars 31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

The amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of the year:
Principal amount 241.22
Interest due thereon -

(b) Amount of payments made to suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year:

{c)

(d)

(©

Principal amount -
Interest actually paid under scction 16 of MSMED -

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the vear) but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act

The amount of interest:
Accrued at the end of each accounting year -
Remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 4

Interest remaining due and payable to suppliers disallowablc as deductible expenditurc -
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterpriscs
Development Act, 2006

167.95
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23

24

25

Revenue from aperations

Revenue from operations
Sale of products

- Within India

- Qutside India

Rendering of services
Job work and other income

Other operating revenue

Sale of scrap
Duty draw back

Total

Refer note 43 in terms of disclosures required under Ind AS 115

QOther income

Interest income
- Fixed deposits
- 7.5% non cumnulative redeemable preference shares
- Others

Dividend income
Eental income

Profit on sale of mutual fund (net)

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipments (net)

Gain on foreign exchange fluctuations {net)

Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Incentive received under pradhan mantri rojgar protsahan yojana (PMRPY)
Miscellaneous income

Total

Cost of raw materials consumed

Raw materials consumed

Movement of raw material consumed are as follows:
Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases made during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Cost of raw materials consumed

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

10,112.50 7.899.12
148.90 141.52
4830 71.85
58.08 3137
1.88 3.76
10,362.66 8,147.62
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
6.01 219
11.08 10.31
4.61 0.05
0.40 032
29.66 28.06
0.70 -
0.82 0.79
. 14.53
2323 6.49
- 0.06
4428 14.84
120.79 77.64
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
7,965.01 6,025.91
7,965.01 6,025.91
1,.979.15 1,925.43
8,175.64 6,079.63
(2,189.78) (1,979.15)
7,965.01 6,025.91
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29 Depreciation and amortization expense

31 March 2023

26 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and work-in-progres Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
a) Details of changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress are as follows:
Changes i inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 4.93 64.35
493 64.35
b) Detailed breakup of the changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress are as
follows:
Opening stock
Finished goods 314.85 377.06
Work-in-progress 12996 132.10
444.81 509.16
Closing stock
Finished goods 301.96 314,85
Work-in-progress 137.93 129.96
Total 439.89 444.31
37 Emol Year ended Year ended
mployee benefits cxpense 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 1,160.40 1.049.70
Confribution to provident and other funds (refer note 36 for details) 51.70 50.35
Staff welfare expense 57.15 45,79
Total 1,269.25 1,145.54
18 i Year ended Year ended
BinaTICCICoRES 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expenses 79.96 35.39
Interest on lease liabilities 14.30 11.53
Total 94.26 46.92
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 278.63 294.11
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 22.62 85.11
Amortisation of right of use assets (refer note 5) 3138 25,52

332.63 404.74

Total

{This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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30 Other expenses

31

Rent

Congsumption of stores and spare parts
Consumption of packing material

Power and fuel

Repair and maintenance

- Plant & equipments

- Buildings

- Others

Vehicle running and maintainance expense
Rates and taxes

Insurance charges

Travelling & conveyance expenses
Security service charges

Auditors remuneration*

Legal and professional expenses

Loss on foreign exchange fluctuations {net)
Freight & forwarding expenses

Job work expenses

Warranty expenses

Royalty

Corporate social responsibility {refer note 38}
Bad debts/advances

Product development expenses

Provision for expected credit loss
Miscellaneous expense

Total

*Auditor's remuneration

As anditor:

Audit fee

In other capacity:

Other services
Reimbursgment of expenses

Note 1 Expenses on R&D during the year

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
12.99 8.09
62.90 69.01
2116 13.42
77.53 65.10
51.76 51.80
16,68 12.8%
35.89 2573
8.19 707
4,22 515
20,89 29.85
69.56 35.00
22.54 18.82
2.96 2.20
4773 46,26

3%9.00 -
47.14 3595
53.22 45 60
7.53 2.62
31.09 2774
2.64 9.53
- 33.05
- 85.38

27.10 -
27.62 35.33
699.41 665.60

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

2.00 220
0.18 -
0.18 -
2.96 2.20

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2023

Year ended 31 March 2022

Capital expenditure* Revenuc expenditure

Capital expenditure*

Revenue expenditure

Total expenditure incurred during the year

128.77

29122

44.13

282.40

* Total capital expenditure incurred includes capital expenditure amounting to Rs. 18,94 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 32.45 mullion) claimed under Sec 33

(2AB} of Income Tax Act, 1961 as per Department of Scientific and Industrial Research ('DSIR") guidelines.

Exceptional items

Dimunition in the value of investment (Refer Note - 1 below)
Dimunition ity the value of inventory (Reter Note - 2 below)
On account of voluntary retirement scheme (Refer Note - 3 below)

Notes:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- 18.38
20.86 65.09
148.80 -
169.66 83.47

1. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had made an assessment of recoverable value of investment in the companies taking into account the
business performance, prevailing business conditions and revised expectations of future performance. Basis the fair values of investment in Tsecond Generation
Technology Private Limited, management had made the provision of Rs 18.38 million in the books of accounts.
2. During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has made an assessment of the value of inventory. Basis the assessment done, management believes that

the provision of Rs 20,86 million (31 March 2022: 65.09 million) to be previded for in the books of accounts.

3. During the year ended 31 March 2023, expenditure incurred pursuant to voluntary retirement scheme of the Company amounting to Rs 148.80 million.
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32 Components of Other Comprehensive Income (0CI)

Fair value gain on cquity investments through other comprehensive income
Re-measurement 1osses on defined benefit obligation
Income tax effect

Taotal

33 Earnings per share (EPS)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1.97 0.63
{4.99) 9.20
1.74 (3.22)
(1.27) 6,62
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

The [bllowing reflects the profit and share data used for the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Loss altributable to equity holders

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year (in nos.)

Weighled average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS (in nos.) after bonus issue™

Nominal value per share ()
Basic and diluted TFS (2)

(19.77)
1,949,392
9,746,960

10
{2.03)

{153.44)
1,949,392
9746 960

10
(15.74)

* Company las issued bonus shares (77,97,568 equity sharcs of Rs 10/~ each) of an aggregate nominal value of Rs. 7,79,75,680 to the existing shareholders of
the Company holding shares in the ratio of 1:4 i.¢ 4 (Four) fully paid up equity shares for every 1 ((One) equity shares held, to the shareholders as on 10 June,
2023, Accordingly earning per share (basic and diluted) for the current year and previous ycar have been calculated considering the impact of benus shares,

34 The Company has made investment and given guarantee for various subsidiary companies joint venture and associale company. The details of investment made
and guarantee outstanding as at year end is given in below mentioned table along with purpose of the loan and guarantec given as required u/s 186(4) of the

Companics Act 2013,

Name of Entity

Year ended
31 March 2023

Year ended
31 March 2022

A) Particulars of Investment made - Equity instruments®
Napino Control Systems Private Limited

Napino Domino Mechatronics Private Limited

Napino Digital Solutions Private Limiled

Napino Continental Vehicle Electronics Private Limited
VVDN Technologics Private Limited

Total ({)

B) Particulars of Investment made- Preference shares
Napino Control Systems Private Limited
YVDN Technologies Private Limiled

Total (D)

Total investoents made {A+B)

*As per requirement of Section 186(4), disclosure is vequired in regards io body corporates only

E) Guarantee given for subsidiary companics & Joint Venture
Napino Control Systems Private Limited #

Napino Continental Vehicle Electronics Private Limited
Total puarantee

560.00 560.00
010 0.10
63.00 63,00
325.00 525.00
118.38 118.38
1,0066.48 1,066.48
214.02 20294
390.01 390,01
604.03 592.94
1,670.50 1,659.41
150.00 400.00
100.00 100.00
250.00 S00.00

1t Guarantee has been released subsequent to the reporting date,

{This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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35 Lease
{(a) The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' from 1 April 2019,

(b) The weighted average lessee's incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 April 2023 is 9% p.a. (1 April 2022: 9% p.a.}

(e} The table below deseribes the nature of the Company's leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised as on 31 March 2023:

Right-of-use assets

No of right-of-use assets

Range of remaining

Average remaining

leased term (years) leasc term {vears)
Land 2 84-93 vears 89 vears
Building 3 1-8 vears 4 years

‘The table below describes the nature of the Company's leaging aclivities by lype of right-of-use asset recognised as on 31 March 2022

Right-of-use assets

No of right-of-use assets

Range of remaining

Average remaining

leased term (vears) lease term (years)
Land 2 £5-94 vears 90 years
Building 4 2-9 vears 5 years

There are no leases entered by the Company which have any extenston, lermination or purchase option and the payment of lease rentals is not based on

variable payments which are linked to an index.

(d) Amount recognised in ¢he balance sheet and statement of profit and loss:

Category of Right-of-use asseis

Particulars
Land Building Total
Balance as at 1 April 2021 55.96 110.90 166.86
Add: Additions during the year - 70.86 70.86
Less: Amortisation charged on right-of-use assets (refer note 5) {0.65) (24.86) {25.52)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 / 01 April 2022 53.31 156.89 212.20
Add: Additions during the year - 32.89 32.89
Less: Amontisation charged on right-of-use assets (refer note 5) {0.66) (30.72) (31.38)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 54.65 159.07 213.71
{e} Lease payment not recognised as lease linbility
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Expenses relaling to short term leases {included in other expenses) 12,99 3.09
Total 12,99 8.09
(f) The total cash outflow for the leases for the year ended 31 March 2023 was T 38.03 millions (31 March 2022: ¥ 3005 millions)
{g) Future minimum lease payments as on 31 March 2023 are as follows:
-y As on 31 March 2023
Minimunr Eeaseipayments due Lease pavment Finance charges Net Present Value
Within 1 vear 46.4) 1472 31.68
1-5 year 141.73 31.63 109.80
More than 5 year 46.33 9.85 36.38
Total 234.46 56.60 177.86
Future minimum lease payments as on 31 March 2022 are as follows:
Minimum Lease payments due Ason 3l Warch 203)
Lease payment Finance charges Net Present Value
Within 1 year 38.03 14.30 2373
1-5 year 125.20 34.36 00.84
More than 5 year 69.15 14,17 54 08
Total 232.38 62.83 169.55




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED
CIN - U34MIHRIS2IPLC031470
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023
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36 Emplovee benefits

a) Defined Cantribution Plany
The Company makes contribution towards various statutery cmplovess’ fund, Under the schemes, the Camnpany is required to contribute a specified pereentage of payroli cost, as specified
in the rules of the schemes to these defined contribution schemes The Company has reeognised Rs 5170 millions (31 March 2022: Rs, 50,35 millions) a3 an expense towards contribution

to these plans. Below are the details for same:

. Year ended Year ended
. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Contribmtion to Provident Fund 435 86 45 31
Contribution ta Labour Welfare Fund 0.50 054
Contribution ta Employes' Staie Insurance Scheme 5234 4 50

51.70 50.35

Total

b) Defined Beacfit Plans

1) Gratuity;
The gratuity plan is gaverned by the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972 Under the Act, emplovess who have completed five yvears of service are entitled to speeilic benefit The level ol bencfit
provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age The euployes is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last drawn far each completed year of
service with part thereof in excess of six months, The same is payable on termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlict
This iz a funded benchl plan for qualilying employees. The Company makes contributions to LIC policy to cover the lisbility, This scheme provides for 4 lump sum payment 1o vested
employees at retirement, death while in employmient or on termination of employment. Vesting oceurs upon completion of five years of service
These plans typically expose the Company 10 acluarial risks such as: investment risk, inherent interest rale risk, longevity risk and salary risk,

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability {dcnominated in Indian Rupee) is caleulated using

a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds Currently for the plan in Tndia, it has a relatively balanced mix of investments in

governmenl seeuritics, and ather debt instruments.

Interest Rate Risk The defined benefit abligation calculation uses a discount rale based on government bends If bond
yields fall, the defined benefit obligation will tend to increase

The present value of the defined benefit plan lizhitity is caleulated by reference lo the best estimale of]
the mnortality of plan participants both during and after their cmployment An increase in the lifs
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liahility.

Investment Risk

Longevity Risk

Salary Risk Hisher ‘han expected increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation
The fallpwing tables rise the comp ts of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit oc loss and the funded status and amounts recognised io the balaoce
sheet:
[Parliculars ki e

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Chapge in benefit ebligafion
Present value of abligation as at the bepinming of the year 493.94 3011
Add: Current serviee cost 10.69 10,59
Add: Interest cost 6.74 6.03
Add: Actuaral {Eain) / loss 3248 {8 15}
Less: Benchits paid {31.04} {3.68%
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 85.60 93.94
Change in plan asscts
Blan assets at the beginning of the year 87.00 87.00
Add: Expected retumn om plan assets 6,25 591
Add: Contribution by the Company 6599 211
Less: Fund charges - -
Less: Benefits paid (23500 {9.06)
Add: Actrrarial gain / (loss) 027 1.05
Plan asseis ai the end of the vear 77.00 87.00
Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the financial statements 8.61 0.94
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current service cost 10,69 10,52
Net interest expense/ (incame) 0,50 0.14
Total 11.19 10.73
Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income Gainf{Lossh

Year ended Year ended

Changes in demographic assumptions

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Changes in financial assumptians 164 425
Lxperience adjustments (6.90) 1490
Eeturn on plan assets (excluding amounts included in nel infercsl cxpensc) 0,27 1.03
Total (4.99 9.20
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The major categories of plan asscts of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

As at As at
Gratuity 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Investment Details Funded Funded
Investment with Tnsurer (LIC} 100% 100%
The principal assumptions vsed in determining gratuity liability for the Company’s plans are shown helow:
As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate (¥4} 7.36% 7.18%
Expected rate of retum on Flan assets (%)
Future salary inereases (%4} 5.50% 5.50%
Retirement Age (Years) 58 58
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 years 3.00% 1.00%
From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00%
) 100 % of LALM 100 % of LALM
ivlontalifpirate (2012 - 14) (2012 - 14)
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity Liability . IY;:;rzE'j;(fn MY;::;:?';Z
Impact on chapge in salary increase
Present valee of obligation at the end of the year 85,60 93,94
-Impact due to increase of 0.5% 4.83 563
-Iimpact due to decrease of 0.5% {4.48) (523}
Impact on change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 85.60 93.94
-Impact due to increase of 0.5% (4.39} (5.1
4,76 557

-Impact due to decrease of 0.3%

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on the method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions

oceurring at the end of the reporting period.
Sensitivities due to moriality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not caleulated. Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payments, rate

of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lomp sum benefit on retirement,

The following payments are maturity profile (undiscounted) to the defined benefit obligation in future years:

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within the next 12 months {next annual reporting period) .69 429
Between 2 and 5 years 19.67 16.35
Beyond 5 years 6223 73.30
85.60 9395

Total expected payments

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 18 435 years (31 March 2022: 17.14 years).

Expected contribution
The expected future employer contributions for defined benefit plan is Rs 1.39 millions as at 31 March 2023 [31 March 2022 : Rs 1.63 millions].

{This space has been infentionally lefi blank}
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37

a)

b)

38

Commitments, contingencies and litigations
Capital Commitments

[stimated amount of conlracts remaining te be executed on capital account (nel of advances) not provided for are Rs. 21,70 millions (31 March
2022: Rs, 18.57 millions).

Other Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on other account (net of advances) not provided for are Rs. 25.88 millions (31 March 2022:
Rs. 22,40 millions).

Contingent Liabilities
. Ag at As at
SNo || Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
1 In respect of surety given to third party 0.05 0.05
2 Corporate Guarantee in respect of loan taken by subsidiary/JV company from bank 250,00 500.00
3 Service tax and Sales tax 44 47 43.12
4 Income tax 30.09 -

The Company is contesting the above demands and the management, including its solicitor, believe that its position will likely be upheld in the
appellate process. No expense has been accrued in the standalone financial statements for the above demand. Company has certain litigations
involving vendors and based on the legal advice of in-house legal team, the management believes that no material liability will devolve on the

Company in respect of these litigations,

Corporate social responsibility

As per Sec 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company meeting the applicable threshold, required to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for
the immediately preceding three financial year as per seciion 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 on corporate social respensibility (CSR) activities,
The CSR committes has been formed by the Company as per the Act and the Company has incurred expense on the projects / activities for the
bencfit of the public in general and in the neighbourhood of the manufacturing facilities of the Company.

The Company has spent amount on corporate social responsibility expenses as below:

Particulars Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2023 March 2022

Unspenl balance as at beginning of the year - -

Gross amount required to be spent during the year 2.64 8.00

Amount spent during the year

- Construction / acquisition of any asset - -

- On purposes other than above 142 9.53

1.22 -

Unspent balance as af year end [{excess)/shortfall]

The Company has transferred the remaining unspent amounts towards CSR under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act, in respect of ongoing
project, within a period of 30 days from the end of financial vear to a special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section

135 of the Act.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITLD

CIN - U34300HR1991 PLCAO31470

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for ¢he year ended 31 March 2023
{Amouni in T millions, unless otherwise stated)

30  Related party transaciions

a) WNames of related parties and related party relationship

b)

1. Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associate Companies

i) Subsidiary Company

Napino Control Systems Private Limited
MNapino Domino Mechatronics Private Limited
Mapine Digital Solutions Private Limited

ii) Joint Venture

Napine Continental Vehicle Electronics Private Limited
Shindengen Electric Manufacturing Co. Lid. Japan (Refer Note 33 for details)

iii} Associate Company

VVDN Technologies Private Limited

2, Key management personnel (KNP

Mr, Vipin Raheja- (Chairman and Managing director)

s, Vandana Raheja- (Whole time Director)

s, Vani Raheja- (Whole time Ditector)

Mr. Vaibhav Raheja- (Joint Managing Director)

Mr. Navin Rahgja- (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Shyam Arora- (Independent Director)

Mr. Sanjay Kapoor- (Independent Director) (Resigned w.e.f 30 Septemnber 2022)
Mr. Rajat Jain- (Chief Financial Officer) { Appointed w.e.f 20 Octeber 2022)
Mr. Inderneel Sethi- (Cornpany Secretary)

3. Refated parties with whom tramsactions have taken place during the year (Entities in which KMP have significant influence):

Ovn Engineers Private Limited

M/s Trading Engineers

Ingenious Appliances & Packaging Private Limited
OWHN Bio Energy Prvate Limited
Vishnu Vaibhav Industries Private Limited

Detail of transactions with related parties are as below:

Year ended

Year ended

Relationship Name of the related Farty Nature of {ransaction
31 March 2023 31 March 2021
A Subsidiary 1.) Napine Conirol Systerns Private Limited Management services 300 3.00
{"NCS")
Sales of products 1,556.42 1,428.37
Rental income & recovery of electricity expenses 18.01 18.34
Job work income 10.69 6.63
Purchase of raw material 282
Purchase of packing material 0.04 =
Recovery of expenses by WCS 045 -
2.} Maping Digital Solutions Private Limited Investment {n equity instruments of subsidiaries - 43.00
Recovery of expenses - 0.66
Sales of products .67
Rental income 0.54 -
B. Joint Yenture 1.} Shindengen Electric Manufacturing Co. Litd. Purchase of raw material and stores & spare parts 26921 267,87
Japan
Royalty 125 1.98
2.) Napino Continental Vehicle Elecitonics Private Rental income & recovery of electricity expenses 20.58 18.49
Limited
Job work and other income 7.16 597
Sales of Property, plant and equipment 2,14 0.80
Sales of products 83513 445.67
Recovery of expenses 0.05 0.02
Investment in equity instruments of joint venture - 50,00
1.58 4.23

Purchase of raw material
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b)

c)

Detail of transactions with related purties are as below {cont'd);

Relationship Name of the related Party Nature of transaction Year ended Year ended
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
C. Entities in which KMP Ovn Engineers Private Limited Purchase of raw material 058 089
have significant influence Purchase of Property, plant and equipment 0.98
QWN Bio Energy Private Limited Purchase of raw matenal - 0.02
Idfs Trading Engineers Purchase of stores and spares and property, plant & 0.14 0,02
eguipment
[npenious Appliances and Packaginpg Private Purchase of packing material, stores & spare parts and 1.08 0.73
Limited printing and stationery
Rental Tncome .60 -
Vishnu Vaibhav Industries Private Limited Purchase of stores end spares and property, plant & 0.23
equipment
D. Associate Company YVDN Technologies Private Limited Purchase of raw material - 3.7
Recovery of expenses 4.40 436
Job work and other income - 0.70
Sales of products 97.10 230,35
E. KMFP Vandana Raheja Rental income 240 180
Compensation ¢f Key management personnel of the Company
Nature of transaction Year ended Year ended
Nams of themelatcditany 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Short term employement benefit
Vipin Raheja Remuneration* 16.83 16,80
Vandana Raheja Remuneration*® 9.83 9.80
Vaibhay Raheja Remuneration* 11.23 11.20
Vani Raheja Renmmeration® 5.65 5.60
Shyam Arors Sitting fees 0,06 0.05
Rajat Jain Salary 5.02 s
Indermneel Sethi Salary 277 243
Post-employment including gratuity and medical benefits**
Vipin Raheja 0.02 0.02
Vandana Raheja 0.02 002
Vaibhav Raheja 0.02 0.02
Vani Raheja 0.2 002
Rajat Jain 0.30 -
Indernesl Sathi 012 0.12
Termination benefits
51,90 46.07

Taotal compensation

* Remuneration includes perquisite value of Rs. 0.32 millions as per Income Tax Act, 1961 (March 31, 2022 Rs. 0.31 millions)
**The remuneration to key management personnel does not inchide compensated absences and gratuity expense which has been determined on actuarial basis for the Company as a

whale.

{This space has been intentionally leff blank)
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d) Details of balance payable / receivable by key munsrement personnel and their relative that are able to exercise significant influence

Relatignship Name of the related Party Nature of transaction Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A Subsidiary 1.} Napine Control Systems Private Limited Eeceivables 342 48 292 48
2 Y Napino Digital Solutions Private Limited Rent receivable 436 =
Trade receivable .15
B. Joint Venture 1.) Shindengen Electric Manufacturing Co. Ltd. Payables 9218 40.39
JTapan
2.) Napino Continental Vehicie Electronics Private Receivables 230, 88 132,73
Limited
. Entities in which KMP Ovn Engineers Private Limited Payahles 0.15 0.00
have significant influence Capital advance 138 -
OV Bio Energy Private Limited Payables 002 0.02
Ingemicus Appliances and Packaging Private Payables 0.10 0.25
Limited
Receivables 0.05 :
Vishau Vaibhav Industries Private Limited Payables 0.28 B
I Associate Company VVDN Technologies Private Limited Advance from Customer 0,00 19.44
Receivables 71.99 59.35
Payables 2.90 1.18
Advance to suppliers 2.45 .
Capital Advances 1.42 -
E. KMP Vipin Raheja Salary Payable 1.78 2,29
Vandana Raheja Salary Payable 1.31 302
Vaibhav Raheja Salary Payable 0.82 2.21
Vani Raheja Salary Payable D.64 1.54
Shyam Arora Sitting Fees Payable 0.18 013
Rajat Jain Salary Payable 0.50 u
0.28 0.28

Indemee! Sethi Salary Payable

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sale and purchase from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transaction, Cutstanding balances ai the year end are unsecured and
interest free and seftlement occurs in cash. For guarantees given to related parties, Refer note 37, For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment in undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market

int which the related party operates

{This space has been inlenifonally left Blank)
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40 Segment information

41

The Company is in the business of manufacturing electronic parts for various industries. Hence, as per the chief operating decision maker, sale
of these products has been considered as single operating segment as per Ind AS 108 ‘Operating Segments’ and accordingly disclosures have
been limited to single operating segment. The revenues of the Company are majorly domestic, hence revenues from customers are only in one
geographical area, i.e. within India.

Revenue from two customers, accounting for more than 10% of the total revcnue, is Rs 6,418.90 millions (31 March 2022: 5,810.23 millions).

Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Customer 1 5,034.17 4,375.76
Customer 2 1,384.73 1,434.47
Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic condilions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net
debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars Ag at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Borrowings {Rofor Note 16) 1,411.08 879.17
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 13) (11.10} {23.50)
Net debt 1,399.98 855.67
Equity share capital (refer note 14) 19.49 19.49
Other equity (refer note 15) 5,619.45 5,640.50
Total Capital 5,638.94 5,659.99
Capital and net debt 7,038.92 6,515.67

19.89% 13.13%

Gearing ratio

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims te ensure that it meets financial
covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requircmenls. Breaches in meeting the financial
covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2023

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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42 Finuncial instruments by category

43

The camying value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 Mareh 2022

Carrying value Fair value Carrying valug Fair value
Financial asscts at amortised cost
Investrment in bonds cas 005 10,02 1002
Trade receivables 2,434 50 2,434 50 1.913.84 1,913.84
Cash and cash equivalents 11.10 11.10 23.50 23.50
Loans 2.6% 269 418 418
(rher financial assets 32556 315 58 9815 o815
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Investment in mutual funds 175.36 175,36 16620 166,20
Investment in others 80,34 80,34 06 28 66.28
Finanecial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
[nvestment in quoted equity shares 14.13 14.13 12,16 12,16
Total financial assets 3,053.64 3.053.64 2.254.32 2,294.32
Financial liabilitics
Borrowings 141108 1,411.08 879.17 879.17
Lease liabilities 177.85 177.85 169,55 169,55
Trade payables 203591 2.035.91 1,359.73 1,559.73
Other financial liabitities 14211 14211 138,98 138.98
Total financial liabilities 3,766.96 3,766.96 2,747.43 2,747.43

The camrying amount of irade receivables, trade payables, capital creditors and cash and cash equivalents arc considered to be the same as their fair values, due to short-term in nature,
The carrymg value of the amortised financial assets and liabilities approximate (o the fair value on the respective reporting dates.

Investments in subsidiaries, joint venture and associate as at the close of the year ended 31 March 2023 are carried at cost, per the option availed by the Company under the relevant
provisian of Ind AS, Hence, the same has not been considered in the above table.

Fair value hicrarchy
All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
insignificant to the fair value measurements as a whole,

Level 1 : Quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical gssets or liabilities
Level 2 : Directly (i<, as prices) or indirectly (e, derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or l{ability that are not based on unobservable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities,

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023;

Fair value messurcment using

Date of valuation Totul Quoted prices in Significant Significaot
active markets observable unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

I Assets measured at fair value:
a) Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss:

Investment in mutual funds 31 March 2023 175,34 17534 - -

Investment in others 31 March 2023 80,34 - - 80.34
b Financial instruments at fair value through OCT:

Investment in quoted equity shares 31 March 2023 14.13 413 - P

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during at 31 March 2023,

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Quantitative disciosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets ss at 31 March 2022;

Fair value rement using
Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets abservable urobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
L Assets mensured at fair valoe (Note 42);
a} Financial instroments at fair valoe through profit or loss:
Investment in mutual funds 3] March 2022 166.20 166.20 - -
Inveshment in others 31 March 2022 66.28 - - 66.28
b) Financial instruments at fair value through OCT;
Investment in quoted equity shares 31 March 2022 12.16 12.16 = =
There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the year ended 31 March 2022
Valuation process and technique to determine fair values
Measurcment of fair valrees (Level 3)
(i) The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the periods ended on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022;
Particulars Investment in
others
As at 31 March 2021 64.68
Add: Aequisition [9.98
Less: Disposal / Provision for dimunition 18.38)
As at 31 March 2022 66,25
Add: Fair value gain 14.048
Less: Disposal / Provision for dimunition -
As at 31 March 2023 80.34
¥aluation inputs and relationships to fair value
Particulars Note Significant Inter  relationship  between
unobservable significant uncbservable inputs
inputs and fair valuc measurcment
Investment in others Fair valued through profit or loss. These are wvarious|Fair valuation was done for
early stage startup|Virtualforest Private Limited and
companies, consequently gain  has  been
recorded.

{This space has been intertionally left blank)
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44 Financial risk management ubjectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables, other payables, security deposits received, capital creditors and employse related payables The
main purpose of these financial lighilities is to finance the Company’s operations and 1o provide guaraniees to support its operations, The Company’s principal financial
assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalent that derive directly from its operations. The Company does not enlers into derivative transactions

The Company is exposed to market risk, commadily price tisk, credit sk and liquidity risk The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks
The Company’s scnior management 1s responsible to ensure that Company’s financial risk activities which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance wilh the Company’s policies and risk objectives, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

(i) Market risk

Market risk is the risk thal the fair value of fiture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk: interest rate nisk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price nsk and cormmodity risk, Financial {nstruments affected by market risk include loans

and advances, deposits and FVTOCI investments.

(a) Interest Rate Risk

(i) Financial liabilities

The Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposurcs on external financing AL 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Company is exposed to
changes in interest rates through bank borrowings carrying variable interest tates, The Company's investmenis in fixed deposits carry tixed interest rates,

Interest rate risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate fsk:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 | 31 Mareh 2021
Wariablc rate borrowing 1,407.77 875,18
Fixed rate bommowing 331 3.98
Total borrowings 1,411.08 879.17
sensitivity
Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in interest rates.
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

Intcrest sensitivity*

Interest rates — increase by 50 basis points
Interest rates — decrease by 50 basis points
* Holding ail ather variables constant

7.04 438
{7.04) {4.38)

{ii) Financial assets
The Company’s deposits with banks are camried at amortised cost and are [ixed rate instrumnents. They are, therefore, not subjcet to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS
107, since neither the carmying amount nor the future cash fows will fluctuate because of a change in market interast rates

(b) Foreign currency risk
Foreign curency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's

exposure to the risk of changes in foreign cxchange rates relates primarily Lo its operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency)

The Company undertakes transactions denominated in forcign currencies and consequently, exposes to exchange ratc tluctuations. The Company does not enter info trade
financial instruments including derivate financial instruments for hedging its foreign currency nisk. The appropriateness of the risk policy is reviewed periodically with
reference to the approved foreign currency risk management policy followed by the Company,

{This space kas beew imtenttionally left blunk)




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITLED
CIN - U34300TTR19%1 PLC031470

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 Maveh 2023

{dmount in T millions, unless atherwise stated)

Foreign currency risk exposure:

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars Amount in N
. Amount in
Foreign Ras. . . Rs,
CU Frency FOl‘li‘lgﬂ Lurrency
1 EURQO
Trade receivables 0.63 4994 089 76,04
Trade payables [0.28) {24.85) {0017 {270}
Total 0.35 25.09 0,78 66.34
2 USD
Trade recetvables .35 2573 0.69 30,76
Trade payables (11.94) (989.26) (7.79) {390.87)
Other financial Tiabilitics - capital creditors {0.10) {8.38) - -
Total (11.65) {971.8%) {7.09 {540.10)
3 Jry
Trade Payablcs (181.27} {113.68) {66.55) (44.46)
Total (181.27) {113.68) {66.95) (44463
4 GBP
Trade Receivables 0.0 .04
Tatal .00 0.04 - -
5 CNY
Trade Fayables {0.16) {1.98) - -
Total {0.16) (1.98) = -

Out of the above forelgn currency exposures, none of the monetary assets and liabilities are hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis:

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the INR against relevant foreiyn currencies, 5% is the rate used in order to
determine the sensitivity analysis considering the past trends and expectations of the management for changes in the foreign currency exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes the outstanding foreign curmency denominated monetary items and adjust their transaction at the period cud for 5% change in foreign currency rates, A
positive number below indicates a increase in profil or equity where the INR strengthens 5% against the relevant currency, For a 5% weakening of the INR. against the
relevant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity balance below would be negative, Impacts shown below are befere tax.

(i) Impact of Eure

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

Ax at
31 March 2022

Impact on Statement of Profit and loss for the year

Particulars

31 March 2023

Increase by 5% 1.25 KRy
Decrease by 3% (1.23) (3.32)
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period
Increase by 5% 125 3.32
Decrease by 5% {1.25) (3.32)
(ii) Impact of USD

Asat Asat

31 March 2022

Tmpact on Statement of Profit and loss for the year
[nerease by 5%
Deercase by 3%

Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period
Increase by 5%
Decraase by 5%

(48.59)
48.59

(48.59)
48.50

(27.01)
27.01

(27.01)
27.01
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(iii) Impact of JPY

- As at As at
AKHCU AR 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Impact on Statement of Prafit and 1gss for' the vear
Increasc by 5% {3.08) (222)
Decrease by 545 5.68 222
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period
Increase by 5% (368) (222)
Decrease by 5% 3.68 223
(iv) Impact of GBP

i Asat As at
Banticulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Impact on Statement of Profit and loss for the year
Increase by 5% 0,00 -
Decrcase by 3% 0.0 .
Impact on total equity as at the end of the reporting period
Increase by 3% 0.00 -
Decrease by 3% (0.0} -
(v) Impact of CNY

: Asat Asat
Particulurs 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Impact on Statement of Profit and loss for the year
Increasc by 5% {0.10) =
Decrease by 5% 0.10 -
Impact on total equity as at the end of the veporting period
Increase by 3% (010} -
Decrease by 5% a.16 -

{ii) Commodity price risk
The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities, The operating activities of the Company require the manufacturing of electronic parts for various
industrics. The Company is not exposed 1o commodity price risk as any change in the price of commodity 18 subsequently recovered by the Company from its customers,

hence, safeguarding itself from any change in commodity prices

{iii) Credit Risk

Credit tisk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company, The Company's exposure to credit Tisk 1s influenced matnly by cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets measured at amortised cost The Company continuously menitors defaults of customers and other counterparties
and incorporates this mformation irlo 118 credit dsk controls,

() Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Intemnal credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with
different characteristics. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets hased on the assumptions, inpuls and facters specific to the
class of financial asscts,

(1) Low credit risk

(i1) Moderate credit risk

(i) High credit nsk

Fased on business cnvironment in which the Company operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fhils to make payments within the
agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and constdering differences between current and historical
economic conditions,

Assets are written off when thers is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptey ot a litigation decided against the Company. The
Company continues 1o engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment, Recoveries madc arc recognised in statement of profit and

loss
The Company provides for expected eredit loss based on the following:

Basis of categorisation Asset class exposed to eredit risk Provision for expected credit loss
Low credit risk Investmenis, loans, cash and cash eguivalents, financial assets 12 month expected credit loss

measured at amortised cost, FVTPL & FVTOCI
Moderate credit nsk Trade receivables

Trade receivables - Life time expected credit loss
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Finaneial assets that expose the entity éo credit risk —

Particulars Aflat At ak

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Low credit risk
Investments 279 78 234 66
Cash and cash equivalents 11.10 2350
Employee advance 2469 418
Other financial assets 325.56 9815
Moderate credit risk
Trade receivables 2434 50 191584
Taotal 3.053.64 2.294.32

(b) Expected credit losses for financial assets

(a) Trade receivables
Customer eredit risk is managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to custorner credit risk management. Credit quality of &

customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Outstanding cusiomer

receivables are regularly monitored.
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data. The

maximut exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Company dees not hold collateral as
security, The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low on the basis of past defanlt rates of its customers.

The following table presents the movement in allowance for expected credit loss for the periods ended on 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022:

Particulars Amount

As at 31 March 2021

Ad4d: Provision created during the year
Less: Adjustments

As at 31 March 2022

Add: Provision created during the year
Less: Adjustments

As at 31 March 2023

27.10

27.10

{b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Company provides for expected credit losses on other financial assets by assessing individual fiuancial instruments for expectation of any credit losses.

- For cash & cash equivalents and other bank balances - Since the Company deals with only high-rated banks and financial institutions, credit risk in respect of cash and
cash equivalents and other bank balances and bank deposits is evaluated as very low.

- For loans and other financial assets - Credit risk is evaluated based on Company knowledge of the credit worthiness of those parties and loss allowance is measured. For
such financial assets, the Company policy is to provide for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provide for lifetime expected credit losses upon

sipnificant increase in credit nisk

{This space has been infentionally left blank)
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44 Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd.)

(iv) Liquidity Risk

Liquidily risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient

liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due.

Managemeni monilors rolling forecasts of the Company liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The
Company takes info account the liquidity of the market in which the entity operates.

Liquidity and Interest Risk Table:

The following table details the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods.
The tables have been drawn up bascd on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest datc on which the Company can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows:

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Year ended 31 March 2023 On demand | Less than 1year | Ito5years | > 5years Total
Borrowings (excluding interest)

Term loan from financial institution (including current maturities) - 3.31 - - 331
Current borrowings 1,407.77 - - - 1,407.77
Lease liabilities - 31.68 109.80 36.38 177.86
Other financial liabilities

Security deposits - 1.00 - - 1.00
Capital creditors - 39.88 - - 39.88
Employee related payables - 99.51 - - 99.51
Other payables = 1.72 - = 1.72
Trade payables

Trade payables & 2,035.91 - - 20359

Company expect liabilities with current maturities to be repaid from net cash provided by operating activities of the entity to which the debt relates or

through opportunistic refinancing activity or some combination thereof,

Year ended 31 March 2022 On demand | Less than 1year | Ito5years | >3 years Total
Borrowings {excluding interest)

Term loan from financial institution {including current maturities} - 0.65 3.35 - 4.00
Current borrowings 875.18 & " - 875.18
Lease lighilities - 23.73 90.84 54,98 169.55
Other financial liabilities

Security deposits - 0.95 - - 0.95
Capital creditors s 25.17 = - 29.17
Employee related payables - 107.56 - - 107.56
Other payables - 7.64 - - 7.64
Trade payables

Trade payables - 1,553.41 - - 1,553.41

Company expect liabilities with current maturities to be repaid from net cash provided by operating activities of the entity to which the debt relates or

through opportunistic refinancing activity or some combination thereof.
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45 Disclosure required under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from customers

A Disaggregation of revenue
Year ended 31 March

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022

Sale of products
Revenue from sale of goods - within India 10,112.50 7,899.12
Revenue from sale of goods - outside India 148.90 141.52
Job work and other income 48.30 71.85
Sale of scrap 58.08 3137
Duty draw back 1.88 3.76

10,369.66 8.147.62

Contract balances
The following table provides information ahout contract assets and liabilities from contract with customers:

Year ended 31 March

Year ended 31 March

2023 2022
Contract assets
Unbilled revenue 277.80 62.64
Total contract assets 277.80 62.64
Contract liabilities
Advance from customers 106.86 96.95
106.86 96.95

Total contract liabilities

Receivable is the right to consideration in exchange of goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract liability is the entity's obligation to

transfer poods or services to a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance.

Significant changes in the contract asset balances during the year as follows:

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Conftract assets

Contract assets

Particulars
Unbiiled revenue Unbilled revenue
Opening balance 62.64 101.65
Addition during the year 277.80 62.64
Revenue recognised during the year (62.64) (101.65}
277.80 62.64

Closing balance

Significant changes in the contract liabilities balances during the year as follows:

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities

Particulars
Advance from customers Advance from customers
Opening balance 96.95 33.10
Addition during the year 106.86 96.95
Revenue recognised during the yvear (96.95) (33.10)
106.56 96.95

Closing balance

The amount receivable from customers become due after expiry of credit period which is on average is less than 60 days. There is no significant
financing component in any transaction with the customers,

The Company does not have any remaining performance obligation as contracts entered {or sale of goods are for a shorter duration. There are no
contracts for sale of services wherein, performance obligation is unsatisfied to which transaction price has been allocated.
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48 Apcing of trade receivables and trade payables as per Schedule L)

a} Trade receivables ageing
The 1able below analyse the outstandiny trade receivables:

31 March 2023

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 months & muath to 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Undispuled trade receivables- considerad gond 238522 ELEY| 40 44 1.52 4.01 2,461.60
Urdispuled trads receivables- credit impaired - . - - - -
2,385 22 341 40.44 1.52 .01 2.461.60
Provision for loss allowance (27,10}
2,434,50
31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods [rom due date of payment Tatal
Less thun 6§ months 6 month to 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs More than 3 years
Undisputed trade receivables- cansidered pood 1,769.4% §3.34 20.80 3zm 1,913.84
Undisputed trade receivables- credit impaired = = = = & -
1,765.49 £5.54 26,80 32.01 1,913.84

Prowvisian for loss allowanes

Mote: Unbilled receivables are disclosed in Naote @ (Other financial assets - current), hence the same is not disclosed in the ageing schedule

by Trade payables apaing
The table below analyse the outstanding (radc payables:

1,913.84

31 March 2023
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 yvears 2-3 years More than 3 years
MSME 23903 0.69 039 0.20 241.22
Others (undisputed) 1,744.38 2829 7.40 2581 1,782.98
Unbilled dues 11.71 - - - 11,71
1,996.03 28.98 7.79 3.11 2,035.91
31 March 2022
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment Tatal
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 vears More than 3 vears
MEME 167.95 - - - 167.95
Others {undisputed} 1358722 11.64 1.63 z 1,371.49
Unbilled dues 2,29 - - - 20,29
1.546.46 11.64 1.63 - 1,559.73
47 Ratio Disclosures
Particulars Numerator Denominator Current year Previous yesr % Variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current liabilities 133 1.77 -13.43%,
Diebt - Equity ratio Tatal debt Sharehalders equity 25% 16% 61.10%
Dbt service coverage ratio Earnings beftre Debt Service 1.86 (124} ~249 78%
interest, tax and
exceptional items
Eetum on equity ratic Net  Profits  after| Average -0.35% 0499 -27.99%
taxes — Preference|Shareholder’s Dquity
Dividend (if any)
Inventory turnaver ratig Cost of goods sold | Average inventory 314 3408 1.66%,
Trade receivables tucnover ratio Net Credit Sales Average Trade 477 485 -1.56%)
Receivables
Trade payables lrnover ratio Met Credit Purchases | Average Trade 482 435 10.84%
Fayables
Net capital tumowver ratio Met Sales Working Capital 313 388 32 68%
Met profit ratio Het Profit Net Sales -1, 1984 -1,88% -B9 BT
Eetum on capital employed Eaming hefare| Capital Employed 1. 40%5 -2.43% =157 48%
interest and taxes
Heturn on investment Profit after tax Imvestment -0,28% -2.35% -R8.05%,

Reasons for variances

I The Company owing to increase in operalions have lead to increass in working capital requirement which has been financed through current horrowings which has resulted in change in

the above ratios.

2 Animprovement in the ratio in the current vear is duc 1o losses in the previous year on account of certain adjustments that were being recorded

[ —
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NAPING AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED

CIN - U34300HR1991PLC0O31470
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended 3F March 2023
{Amount in T millions, uniess otherwise staied)

48 Provision for Warranty
The provision for warranty claims represents the presenl value as best estimate of (he future economic outllows that will be required under the Company's
obfigations for warranties. The estimate has been made on the basis of historical warranty trends and may vary as a result of new matenials, altered manufacturing

processes or ather events affecling product quality.

As at 31 March 2023, this particular provision had a carrying amount of Rs. 9.17 millions (March 31, 2022; Rs. 5.04 millions). In case the warranly claims differ
by 10% from management’s estimates, the warranty provisions would be an cstimated Rs. 0.92 millions higher or lower (March 31, 2022 - Rs. 0.50 millions

higher or lower).

Particulars LU L
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision at the beginning of the year 5.04 4.15
Additional provision made during the vear 7.53 2.62
Amount actually used during the year 3.40 1.73
Provision at the end of the year 9.17 5.04
Current warranty obligalions means warranty claims against sales pertaining 1o previous years which can arise in the FY 22-23,
49 Assets pledged as security
As at As at
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Non Current
Property, plant and equipment {gross) 7.03 7.03
Current
Inventories 2,636.56 243213
Trade receivables 2,434.50 1,913.84
Total current assets pledged as security 5,071.05 4,345.96
5,078.08 4,352.99

Total assets pledged as security

50 There are no loans which have been given to promolers, directors, KMP and related parties.

51 Reporting to banks/ financial institutions
The Company is regular in submission of quarterly statemenis with banks for the borrowings sanctioned against hypothecation of current assets, Further, the
quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with books of accounts except for the following:

Amount of difference

Quarter Particulars Amount as per books of Amount as reported in the
accounts guarterly returns/statements
Trade Payable 1,633.38 1.484.65 148.73
Inventory 212032 2.138 83 (18.51)
June 2022 : L)
une Trade Receivable 2,269.88 2,320.23 (50.35)
Total 6,023.59 5,943.71 79.88
Trade Payable 2.132.75 1.908.25 224.50
Inventory 2,582.33 2,582.33 -
Sept 2022
= Trade Receivable 2,288.34 2,081.84 206.50
Total 7,003.42 6,572.42 431.00
Trade Payable 1,425.57 1,273.13 152.44
Dec 2022 Inventory 227334 2,273.34 »
Trade Receivable 2,348 88 2,025.05 323.83
Total 6,047.79 557152 47627
Tradc Payable 2,035.91 1,589.76 446.15
Invenlory 2,636.535 2.265.30 371.25
March 2023 I de Recsivable 2,434.50 2.478.23 (43.73)
Total 7,106.96 6,333.29 773.67

Reason for material discrepancies: Differences are mainly on account of provisions and period end adjust




NAPINO AUTO AND ELECTRONICS LIMITED
CIN - U34300HR199IPLC0O31470

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

{Amaunt in T millions, unless otherwise stated)

52 Other Statutery Information

ta) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

{b) The Company do not have any transactions with companics struck off.

{¢) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period

{d) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(e} The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

Intermediary shall:
(1) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsaever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiartes) or (1) provide

any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(f} The Company have not reccived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing

or otherwise) that the Company shalf:
(D) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding, Party (Ultimate Beneliciaries) or (i)

provide any goarantec, seeurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
{2) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as mcome during the year in the tax

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1361
{h) The Company is not declared wilful defaultcr by any bank or financial institution or government or any govemment authority

53 Suhsequent events

Below mentioned are the events happened subsequent to the reporting date i.e 31 Mareh 2023

(2) M/s Shindengen Electric Manufacturing Co. Ltd, Japan has sold its entire shareholding of 440,000 equity shares in the Company to Vraheja Trading Private Limited on 07
June 2023,

fb) Pursuant to the provisions of section 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions of law for the time being in force and pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 06
Iuly 2023, the Company has filed Schemes of Arrangement with National Compeny Law Tribunal (NCLT) for their approval on 26 July 2023 The said resiructuring scheme
involves the following:

a. Merger of Vraheja Trading Private Limited and demerger of business of Vishnu Vaibhav Industries Private Limited with Company,

b. Merger of Napino Digital Solutions Private Limited ("Subsidiary of Company") with Company.

c. Demerger of business related to TOT ("Internet of Things") and digital solutions from Company to Napina Tech Ventures Private Limited

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Napino Auto And Electronics Limited

Firm Registration No.; 001076N/NS00013 f

Tarun Gupta Vipin Raftieja ‘ Vaibhav Raheja
Pariner Chaimman & Managing Director Joint Managing Director
Membership No: 507892 DIN- 00032931 N DIN: 00053672

l-_.__\. N~ f}ﬁ} Sy ‘,9

Inderneel Sethi
Company Secretary
M. No: ACS 15263

Place: Gurugram
Date: 29 September 2023




